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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

ERERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Glory Flame Holdings (the “Company”),
| am honoured to present this annual report of the
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 (“FY2019” or the “Reporting Period”).

PERFORMANCE

The Group posted a revenue of HK$93.3 million for FY2019,
representing a decrease by 30.2% as compared to HK$133.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”).
During FY2019, the Group’s revenue was primarily generated
from the construction related business.

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$48.3 million for
FY2019, as compared to a net loss of HK$199.6 million for
FY2018. Basic loss per share for FY2019 was HK4.39 cents,
as compared to HK19.93 cents for FY2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

In year 2019, Hong Kong economy has been reeling from the
United States-China trade war and political unrest arising
from anti-government protest in Hong Kong, coupled with
the outbreak of new coronavirus pneumonia epidemic. Hong
Kong has been pushed into recession with the economy
battered by these social and political events. The global
economic volatility has also exerted further pressure on
Hong Kong economy. The Group expects that the slowing
economy will continue in the coming years. The construction
industry in Hong Kong has also no sign to recover from
slump as it faced difficulties over the deployment of
government fund being stalled for many infrastructure
projects by filibustering in the legislature. The Group’s
construction contract from public sector project dropped
sharply during the year as compared to last year. The Group
braces for weathering the shrinkage of the construction
business in Hong Kong. The Group is confident in getting
through the headwinds.
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The Group strives to drive its growth of construction business
by tapping into emerging markets, particularly in China. The
Group built its own construction project teams specializing
in prefabrication precast construction which mainly serves
the construction projects in China. The Group is eyeing
the potential growth of the construction industry arising
from the Belt and Road Initiative driving the infrastructure
development in Asia and Africa. The Group was working in
close cooperation with a high-tech construction company
which possess the enriched experience on the overseas
market and lend its support to explore and expand the new
market of construction business.

In these years, the Group also dedicated to develop the
businesses relating to the agriculture, supply chain and new
energy. The Group understands that it will be on rocky road
to the start-ups of these businesses. However, the Group
digs its heels in these business development directions that
will lead the Group in success. The Group is now negotiating
with certain potential cooperation partners to explore the
potential business opportunities in some areas of that
includes (1) development of industrial park, supply chain and
property management services; (2) new model of retailing,
industrial innovation development, blockchain technology,
healthcare and new energy and (3) biotechnology, modern
agriculture and cultural tourism.
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT
ERWmE

The Group will closely monitor the market development and
the change in the surrounding of the Group’s operations. We
will continue to adhere to our core philosophy of “Building
a Green World” and the ideology of “green building and
green life” with quality, innovation and effectiveness and
achieve our expansion of the Group’s business with a view to
optimizing stakeholders’ interests and maximizing their value.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our Directors, our experienced management
team, our dedicated employees, and our professional
legal and accounting teams for their wavering support and
commitment. We would also like to express appreciation for
the continuing support and trust of our shareholders, clients,
suppliers and government authorities.

Liu Yingjie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”), the Group mainly engages in (i) provision of
construction services and building materials supply (the
“Construction Business”), (i) Sales of agriculture-related
products (the “Agricultural Business”), and (iii) trading of
clean coal and others (the “Trading Business”),

During the Reporting Period, the Group decided to
discontinue the business of financial services (the “Financial
Services”).

Construction Business

(@) Concrete demolition services and other construction
services

Concrete demolition is one aspect of the construction
industry in Hong Kong. The Group’s concrete demolition
services were mainly concerned with the removal of
pieces or section of concrete from concrete structures
by applying a variety of methods, such as core drilling,
sawing, bursting and crushing. Concrete demolition
services are usually performed by subcontractors in
() general building works, especially for alteration and
redevelopment projects; and (ii) civil engineering works.
Concrete demolition work can be applied in various
situations, such as the construction of underground
utilities, creation of openings for elevator, door, and
window installation, redevelopment of buildings, roads,
tunnels and underground facilities, removal of concrete
during building construction and the preparation of road
surfaces.
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS
BEE T wm R

The customers of the Group’s concrete demolition
services mainly include main contractors and
subcontractors of different types of construction
and civil engineering projects in Hong Kong. Such
customers can generally be categorized into public
sector projects’ customers and private sector projects’
customers. Public sector projects refer to projects
of which the main contractors are employed by
Government departments or statutory bodies in Hong
Kong, while private sector projects refer to projects that
are not public sector projects.

AEBEMNERLIFOREOESLE
EREABREBRERLTAKRIRRIER
MEAZB R ERE - HRAETF—
RADBERARERLERNEER
Fe-r&ERpNEBEHEBBNA
FISORE R BB FAFZA/IAR -
maERBBREIFQIERRER -

2019 2018

o —T-N\F
HK$’000
FHT

HK$’000
FTERT

Revenue from WERE

— private sector project — FERRBIIEE 51,139 43,106

— public sector project — NERBIIEER 10,150 40,697
61,289 83,803

GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEIZRFRAF
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Prefabricated precast construction

Prefabricated precast construction is a new kind of
architecture with the construction process that is
splitting the traditional building products into precast
reinforced concrete member produced in the factory
and transported to the construction site for assembling
into a whole building. Precast concrete contributes to
green building practices as it can be very durable and
energy-efficient. Prefabricated precast construction also
reduces construction waste and debris on construction
site as the precast concrete components are factory-
made and employed by exact-batching technologies. In
the 13th Five Year Plan for “Building Energy Efficiency
and Green Building Development” released by the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of China in February 2017, Chinese government set
out the goals to achieve on the development of green
building by 2020. Driven by the growth in infrastructure
investment and industrialization and increase in new
construction projects in the emerging countries,
the Group expects that the global precast concrete
construction market is poised to grow strong.

The Group strives to drive its growth in Construction
Business by tapping into the emerging markets. The
Group has been working in close cooperation with a
high-tech construction company; which is based in
Guangzhou, the PRC, in bid to explore the construction
projects in the overseas countries along the Belt and
Road. In July 2019, the Group entered into a framework
agreement with the high-tech construction company
and an agent of an Australian construction company
in relation to a prefabricated precast construction
project for building duplex houses in Australia with the
total contract sum of approximately HK$45.0 million.
in November 2019, the Group and the
Australian Construction Company agreed to terminate
the framework agreement as its construction plan was
postponed. The Group continues to co-operate with
the high-tech construction company to look to the other
prefabricated precast construction project in overseas
market.

However,
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Agriculture Business

With the globally increasing concerns about healthy living
and food security, the Group believes that the demand for
green food will continue to rise. The Group has now been
formulating the business strategy and plan for the Agriculture
Business and also initiating the negotiation with certain
agribusinesses to explore the feasibility of cooperation to
develop the business in relation to agricultural produce and
its related products.

On 22 July 2019, the Company and Hubei Bio-great
Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd* (it sl s B & 2 ¥ &
R HD AR QA (the “Target Company”), a company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
with limited liability, entered into a non-legally binding
cooperative intent agreement (the “Intent Agreement”)
in relation to the proposed investment (the “Proposed
Investment”) in the Target Company. It was proposed that
the Company shall invest in the Target Company by way of
subscription of 51% or more of the registered capital of the
Target Company.

Pursuant to the Intent Agreement, the Company intended to
invest in and cooperate with the Target Company to expand
high-tech seed industry projects through the development of
potatoes and agricultural products cold chain, processing,
logistics and distribution centers, leisure sightseeing
agricultural tourism and large scale construction, etc. The
negotiation and due diligence review in respect of the
Proposed Investment is still ongoing.
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In February 2016, the Ministry of Agriculture released its
“Suggestions for Promoting the Development of the Potato
Industry”. The document sets up goals for China’s potato
industry development to expand the area of growing
potato to more than 100 million mu by year 2020. By the
time, the proportion of suitable varieties for potato staple
food processing will reach approximately 30% and the
consumption of potato staple food will account for 30% of
total consumption of potatoes in China. It also sets out that,
in order to implement the spirit of Document No.1 of the
Central Committee and the national strategic development on
food safety under the new situation, promote the structural
reform from the agricultural supply side, transform the mode
of agricultural development, and speed up the agricultural
transformation and upgrading, the potatoes shall be
considered as the staple food products for the development
of industry, to establish the concept of health and scientific
guidance of consumption, promote the steadiness of grain
and growth of income, and improve the quality and efficiency
as well as sustainable development of agriculture. The Group
considers that the Group shall seize the business opportunity
of the agriculture transformation in China that comes to
support the agricultural development and introduce the best
products and technologies.

*  For identification purpose only
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Trading Business

Trading Business primarily comprised the trading of clean
coal. Its coal resource was from the Ordos City, Inner
Mongolia, the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group
decided to suspend the clean coal trading business as it
had operated at a loss. Given the current cost structure of
the clean coal trading business, the Group believes that,
notwithstanding its initiatives in reviewing the supply chain
operations and re-negotiating contract terms with the
customers and business partners, it would be challenging
to turn around this business segment without significantly
upscaling the working capital and other capital expenditure.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has maintained the
service of coal washing for the suppliers and receives the
processing fee based on the weight of output.

Financial Services

Financial Services business includes provision of insurance
brokerage and consultancy services in Hong Kong and
provision of commercial factoring services in the PRC. The
Group has ceased all commercial factoring services during
the Reporting Period.

On 28 November 2019, the Group entered in sales and
purchase agreement with independent third party to
dispose of the 60% of share capital of Hong Kong Yuanfeng
Insurance Brokers Limited (“Yuanfeng Insurance”) at
the consideration of approximately HK$122,000. Yuanfeng
Insurance engages in provision of insurance brokerage
consultancy services in Hong Kong. The Group decided to
discontinue the Financial Services business as the Group
expects that the interests of customers in China for the
insurance products in Hong Kong will be on the wane amid
the slowing economy in China.
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BEZE®K
EHXKIZERERBFEK HRE
BREEBPBEARBBEZH M 2B RK -
RBERARN  AEEATEELLERRN
BEEAENBRRESER - ENEH
BRRESGEBHRAGRE BELAE
BMSEEHEHBEREEREETPRE
BRAEFHEANGR  AKERR
ETRERAZOMLEEE S RHEMBE
ERX AKESZEBOBBESA
7 E R — E LR -

RBEEHAR AEERFSEEEBAR
BRH RS - WG EERIEEE -

& B R
TRREEBERETBRERREL
K W BRTG A R B R R I AR
BoAKBEERBRERARLEZHER
PRI AR A

R-E—-hhE+—A=-+N\B AEBER
BUF=—FIVEEHEZ NEEER
BEATEREBELERAR((TERED
M60% I A& - B 49 5122,000% 7T ° TT
LRBUEAEBIRERBRELCEMR
B AKEBATRIELESRRE B
AEASEE BEPBRLERE B
BREEMYTREFHEBE SRS -



MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BEE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7 ] g
Revenue A

Revenue decreased by approximately HK$40.3 million or W ARBEE-—ZT—-N\F+_-_A=+—HIt
30.2% from approximately HK$133.6 million for the year FE ([MEEE—/\%F])#H#1133,600,000
ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”) to approximately & 7T i 4> #940,300,0005% 7T 51,30.2% &
HK$93.3 million for the Reporting Period. The analysis of & 5 # #193,300,0007% JT ° ¥ A % #T &0

revenue was shown as follows: ™
Revenue by nature EHESE WA
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T 7T
Construction Business BEEK
— Provision of Construction — RHEEERS
Services 61,289 83,803
— Prefabricated Precast — ER A
Construction 29,413 4 510
90,702 88,313
Agriculture Business BEEK
— Trading of ecological LED — EERRLEDA ETEEIE
cultivation cabinet and others K E b - 878
Trading Business BEZE®
— Trading of clean coal and others — B & /FZ K K H b 1,055 43,887
Financial Services + B R 7%
— Provision of financial services — REESmRE 1,584 553
93,341 133,631
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Construction Business

Construction Business comprises (1) provision of concrete
demolition and construction engineering services (the
“Construction Services”) and (2) manufacturing and
trading of prefabricated precast construction components
and/or its installations (the “Prefabricated Precast
Construction”)

For the Reporting Period, revenue attributable to
Construction Business was approximately HK$90.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$2.4 million
or 2.7% as compared with approximately HK$88.3 million
for FY2018. The increase was primarily due to a combined
effect of (i) an increase of HK$24.9 million in revenue from
Prefabricated Precast Construction and (i) a decrease of
HK$22.5 million in revenue from Construction Services,
primarily resulting from a decrease of HK$20.1 million in
revenue from construction project of Shatin to Central Link
that was terminated in October 2018.

Agriculture Business

The Group decided to suspend the business development
plan for the LED cultivation cabinets and its related products
due to the economic downturn in the PRC and fierce
competition in the hydroponic market during FY2018. The
Group is now conducting the business strategy review on
Agriculture Business.

The Group recorded no revenue from Agriculture Business
during the Reporting Period. For FY2018, revenue
attributable to Agriculture Business was approximately
HK$0.9 million that was generated from sales and leasing of
the hydroponic planting racks.

Trading Business

Revenue attributable to Trading Business decreased by
approximately HK$42.8 million from HK$43.9 million for
FY2018 to HK$1.1 million for the Reporting Period. The
decrease was primarily due to grinding to halt for trading of
clean coal. The Group only maintained the service of coal
washing for the suppliers and received the processing fee
during the Reporting Period.

14 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEiZRER AT
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Financial Services

Revenue attributable to Financial Services was approximately
HK$1.6 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of HK$1.0 million as compared to HK$0.6 million for
FY2018. The revenue from Financial Services was primarily
generated from insurance brokerage fee income.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately HK$1.4 million
or 4.9% from approximately HK$28.5 million for FY2018
to approximately HK$27.1 million for the Reporting Period.
Such decrease was primarily due to a combined effect of (i)
a decrease of approximately HK$5.8 million in gross profit
from Trading Business, and (i) an increase of approximately
HK$4.9 million in gross profit from Construction Business

Gross profit margin increased from 21.4% for FY2018 to
29.0% for the Reporting Period. The increase was primarily
due to an increase of approximately 4.7 percentage points in
gross profit margin from Construction Business and also a
decrease in revenue from Trading Business that had a lower
gross profit margin.

Impairment Losses on Various Assets

Impairment losses of HK$21.8 million on various assets was
provided for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease
of HK$82.5 million as compared to HK$104.3 million for
FY2018. Such decrease was primarily due to a decrease
of HK$41.3 million in provision for impairment loss on trade
receivables and a decrease of HK$44.9 million in provision
for impairment loss on prepayment and trade deposit.

During the Reporting Period, an additional impairment loss
of HK$5.4 million on trade receivable was made primarily
due to an increase in gross trade receivable resulting from
delaying the payment of our invoices for customers mainly
attributable to Construction Business owing to the tightening
financial market conditions. During FY2018, an impairment
loss of HK$46.7 million on trade receivables due from
customers mainly attributable to Trading Business as a result
of the worsened credit quality of customers amid the global
economic downturn.
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During the Reporting Period, an impairment loss of HK$5.7
million on prepayment and trade deposit attributable to
Trading Business and Construction Business resulted
from that the suppliers were unable to fulfil our purchase
orders by virtue of financial difficulties. During FY2018,
an impairment loss of HK$50.6 on prepayment and trade
deposit mainly attributable to Agriculture Business, resulting
from the discontinuance of the marketing and production
plan for ecological LED cultivation cabinet system.

During the Reporting Period, an impairment loss of HK$10.7
million on other receivable in relation to the factoring loan
granted to customers was provided. These factoring loans
were default. The Group was taking necessary action to
recover the loan.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by
approximately HK$17.0 million from approximately HK$64.8
million for FY2018 to approximately HK$47.8 million for the
Reporting Period. Such decrease was primarily due to (i) a
decrease of approximately HK$13.5 million in administrative
and operating expenses attributable to Trading Business
and Agriculture Business, due to suspension of trading of
ecological LED cultivation cabinet system and trading of
clean coal; (i) a decrease of approximately HK$5.0 million
in general administrative expenses of head office in Hong
Kong, primarily resulting from a decrease in rental expenses
and legal and professional fee; and (iii) an increase of
approximately HK$6.0 million in administration and operating
expenses attributable to Construction Business, primarily
resulting from an increase in transportation cost and
research and development expenses.
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Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$44.4 million for the Reporting Period,
representing a decrease of HK$150.4 million as compared
to a loss of HK$194.8 million attributable to owners of the
Company for FY2018. The decrease was primarily due to
a combined effect of (i) a decrease of HK$35.7 million in a
loss of sales of investments in securities; (i) a decrease of
HK$20.8 million in share option expenses; (i) a decrease
of HK$41.3 million in impairment loss on trade receivables
and (iv) a decrease of HK$47.8 million in an impairment loss
in association with discontinuing the business plan for the
ecological LED cultivation cabinet system; and (v) a decrease
of HK$17.0 million in administrative and other operating
expenses.

Use of Proceeds of Initial Public Offerings

The net proceeds from the placing of the shares of the
Company in connection with the listing (the “Listing”) was
approximately HK$31.2 million. During the period from 15
August 2014 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2019, the
net proceeds from the Listing were applied as follows:
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The Group expects the unutilized use of proceeds will be
used as planned above during year 2020.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and
bank deposits of approximately HK$30.5 million (2018:
approximately HK$39.2 million).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019
(defined as total borrowings including interest bearing and
non-interest bearing, divided by the Group’s total equity) was
approximately 0.84 (2018: approximately 0.38).

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the Reporting Period.
The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
fluctuations from various currencies, such as United States
dollars and Chinese Renminbi. Since Hong Kong dollars
remains pegged to the United States dollars within a defined
range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group
has certain subsidiaries operating in mainland China, in
which most of their transactions, including revenue, expenses
and other financing activities, are denominated in Chinese
Renminbi. The Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange transaction risk in relation to these
currencies and had not entered into any foreign exchange
contract as hedging measures against these currencies.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposal of
Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

Pre-stressed concrete pile business

On 13 March 2018, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“Disposal Agreement”), to dispose
of its entire shareholding in Mansion Point Internation
Limited, being 51% of its entire issued share capital, to
an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$30,755,000 (the “Disposal”).

The Disposal had been completed on 10 April 2019 in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Disposal
Agreement. Mansion Point, together with its subsidiaries,
had since ceased to be the subsidiaries of the Company and
its financial results of the Disposal Group would no longer be
consolidated into the Company’s financial statements.

Insurance brokerage business

On 28 November 2019, the Group entered in sales and
purchase agreement with independent third party to
dispose of the 60% of share capital of Hong Kong Yuanfeng
Insurance Brokers Limited (“Yuanfeng Insurance”) at
the consideration of approximately HK$122,000. Yuanfeng
Insurance engages in provision of insurance brokerage
consultancy services in Hong Kong.

Events after the Reporting Period

The coronavirus disease 2019 outbreak since early 2020 has
brought additional uncertainties in the global macroeconomic
situation. The Group expects the event may potentially
affect the Group’s business performance in the first half
year of 2020. The degree of impact could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the epidemic and assess its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BEE R

ERKNBERHEHNBLATAR

Bt & N T

TERENDERLIEBES
RZE—N\F=ZA+=8 " ARQRRIFIZ—
EHEEWR(HEHEDR BB LE
= 5 & H ® Mansion Point Internation
Limited &) 2 & % # (B Mansion Point
S EHDBETRANS%)  BE4REA
30,755,000 C([HHEEE ) -

HEFHEERZTE-NFOA+HERY
& % & R X A& 4 5T X © Mansion Point
REMBAR AR TBAARGB ZHWEAR
Al MEESEENTBEREZTEREAA
A mEREEAR -

REELEER
RZE—-AE+—-AZ+N\B K&EFHA
BUFE=FIIVEBERZ LWHEER
BEATERBELERAR((TERRED
#160% A A - (B 49 /122,000% 7T ° JT
2RBUEAEBRERBRELERMR
j@% °

BEHREE

“E_EHEPREN009ERBERE
REBKBERREFBEINTARRE -
AEERYPREHAEELAEER-F
“TFEELYFONFBEENEERE K
AREBRBEIAEMAAITERE A&
ERENEIRBERER KEmMAGES
AEEPFHRARAREEREEXNTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3 19




MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS
EEEFuTuHH& Tﬁ

Debts and Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the total borrowings of the
Group, including unsecured bonds and other loan,
amounted to approximately HK$45.8 million, as compared
to approximately HK$40.0 million as at 31 December 2018.
The annual interest rates of the borrowings for the Reporting
Period ranged from 7.5% to 9.0% (2018: 7.5%) per annum.
All of the borrowings are unsecured and matures in one year.
It was accounted for as current liabilities of the Group. All of
the above are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

Capital Commitments

The Group does not have material capital commitments as at
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Contingent Liability

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil)

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 123 staff (31
December 2018: 153 staff). Total employee costs for the
Reporting Period including directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$33.5 million (FY2018: approximately
HK$53.8 million).

The salary and benefit levels of the employees of the Group
are competitive. This is very important as the construction
industry has been experiencing labour shortage in general.
Individual performance of our employees is rewarded through
the Group’s salary and bonus system. In addition, the Group
provides adequate job training to employees in order to
equip them with practical knowledge and skills to tackle
situations and challenges encountered in diverse work sites.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend to
Shareholders for the Reporting Period (FY2018: Nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Yingjie, aged 51, is an executive Director and
the chairman of the Board. Mr. Liu obtained a Doctor of
Management degree from China Agricultural University in
2005. He is a researcher and an expert in industrial economy
and regional development. Mr. Liu holds positions as
Chairman of Shenzhen Liying Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (&3l
EAELYWR BB AR) and Director of Global Agricultural
Technology Innovation and Development Center of Tsinghua
University* (BZEXRE2IRB ERMAI BRI L EM). He
has served as Deputy Secretary General of China Agricultural
Society* (B 22 g% E K), Deputy Director of Xinjiang
Agriculture Department* (3758 B /A [& & % B2 &l 2 &), Deputy
Director of the Department of International Cooperation of
the Ministry of Agriculture* (& #ZEE 4 EREIFK) and
Deputy Director of the Department of Personnel and Labour*

(AF 58 A8l R K).

Ms. Zhou Jin, aged 30, is an executive Director. Ms. Zhou
holds a diploma of business (marketing) from Australian
Academy of Commerce awarded in December 2012. She
also completed an enterprise CEQO advanced seminar* (1 %
KB E = A& HE) from Wuhan University in 2016. Ms. Zhou
was an assistant to general manager, officer and vice-general
manager of Wuhan Zhangjiawan Freight Company Limited*
(RZERREEEARRFT QA from March 2012 to March
2014. She was the director of XAHT Antenna Technologies
(Hongkong) Limited from 2017 until March 2019, principally
responsible for promotion and sales work in the Australian
market.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Hongmin, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor of Laws and a
Master of Economics from Lanzhou University (B AX2) and
a Doctor of Management from China Agricultural University.
Mr. Cao has also undertaken post-doctoral research in
history from Peking University. Mr. Cao holds positions
including vice president of Shenzhen Fengqun Chanye
Service Group* (YT ¥ 7 = % IR & &), chairman of the
board of director of Shenzhen Heyuan Technology Co., Ltd*
CR YT A& BB AR 2 R]), department head and professor
of China Agricultural Deveopment Research Institute* of the
Beijing Tangyongtong College* (1t 7% 2 & bx o Bl & 7 8
& B 7T Be).

Mr. Chan Chi Pan, aged 35, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor
of Business Administration in China Business from City
University of Hong Kong in July 2009. He holds an estate
agency salesperson’s licence granted by the Estate Agents
Authority in April 2018 and an insurance agent licence. Mr.
Chan is now currently serving as a deputy director at an
immigration consultancy company in Hong Kong. He has
also joined a Hong Kong financial services company in 2017
and is mainly responsible for selling insurance products to
customers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Accountancy from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong in
November 1992, and has become an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since September 1997. Mr. Li has been an executive director
and company secretary of Golden Faith Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2863) (“Golden Faith”), a company of
which its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
and the group chief financial officer of Golden Faith and its
subsidiaries, since November 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Xiaoliang, aged 45, is chief executive officer of
the Group. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in English
and a professional certificate in international finance from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 1998. He was
the head of overseas agricultural technology cooperation
project of China Guangdong International Cooperation
Group* (FEIE R BI & fE& E). Mr. Lai was also the
general manager of a foreign headhunting company in the
South China region and a senior consultant of a real estate
strategy consulting agency. Mr. Lai is currently a director of
New World Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* (¥ X b 3% % OF
I B BE A F]) and chairman of Hubei Bio-great Agricultural
Technology Co., Ltd* (it Slim B R E EZRERHBRAR).
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The Board is pleased to present hereby the corporate
governance report of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognize
the importance of sound corporate governance to the long-
term and continuing success of the Group. Therefore, the
Board is committed to upholding good corporate standards
and procedures for the best interest of the Company’s
shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules sets out the principles of good
corporate governance, code provisions and recommended
best practices. Issuers are expected to comply with the
code provisions or devise their own code on corporate
governance on the terms they consider appropriate provided
that considered reasons are given. Throughout the Reporting
Period, save as disclosed below, the Company had complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code with the
exception of the deviations as explained:

A.2.1 Separation of the roles of chairman and
chief executive

The Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhu Zhou who
served as chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
of the Company resigned on 28 June 2019. The Board
considers that such deviation is deemed appropriate as it
is considered to be more efficient to have a single person
to be the chairman of the Company as well as to discharge
the function of chief executive officer with the support of
the management. In certain core businesses, Mr. Zhu also
delegates its power and authority to certain other executive
Directors and management who have extensive experience
in these specific industries. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the
operations of the Board which comprises experienced and
high caliber individuals.
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Mr. Liu Yingjie re-designated as chairman of the Board on
28 June 2019 and Mr. Lai Xiaoliang was appointed as chief
executive officer of the Group on 19 July 2019. After these
changes, the Company has complied with code provision
A.2.1 of the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of
the Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management
targets and supervision of management performance.
The management is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management and
administration of the Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the board committees
of the Company (the “Board Committee”). Further details
of the Board Committees are set out in this annual report.
Under the terms of reference, the duties of the Board in
respect of corporate governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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Composition of the Board

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report,
the composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Liu Yingjie (Chairman) (Note)
Ms. Zhou Jin (appointed on 12 April 2019)

Mr. Zhu Zhou (Chairman) (resigned on 28 June 2019)
Ms. Jiao Fei (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Cao Hongmin (appointed on 22 January 2019)

Mr. Chan Chi Pan (appointed on 19 July 2019)
Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (appointed on 19 July 2019)
Mr. Liu Yang (resigned on 22 January 2019)

Mr. Chan Kam Wah (resigned on 5 June 2019)

Note:

Mr. Liu Yingjie was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 19
September 2018 and re-designated as executive Director and chairman of
the Board on 28 June 2019.

The Company complied with the requirement under Rule
5.05(1) and Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019, except during the period
from 5 June 2019 to 18 July 2019, the Company had less
than three independent non-executive Directors, which
results in the number of independent non-executive Directors
falling below the minimum number required under Rule
5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each
of the independent non-executive Directors to confirm their
independence. In this connection, the Company has received
positive confirmations from all of the independent non-
executive Directors. Based on the confirmations received, the
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details
of the Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report, there is no financial business, family or other material
or relevant relationship among members of the Board and
senior management.

Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy
as well as operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had 13 meetings
and 1 general meetings. The attendance of the respective
Directors at the Board meetings and general meetings are
set out below:

BTES

Executive Director
Mr. Liu Yingjie (Note 1) BImARFTEM T
Ms. Zhou Jin (Note 2) Zhou JinZ £ (ffi#2)
Mr. Zhu Zhou (Note 3) KNG £ (BT 7£3)

Ms. Jiao Fei (Note 4) ERL L (K it4)

Independent Non-executive BIUFHTES

Director

Mr. Cao Hongmin (Note 5) R & (K 725)
Mr. Chan Chi Pan (Note 6) BR 75 % 5 A& (47 226)
Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (Note 7) TR EHaE7)
Mr. Liu Yang (Note 8) 255 5c & (K7 #£8)

Mr. Chan Kam Wah (Note 9) PR 8% &= 55 & (K772 9)
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Board General
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4/4 0/0
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Note:

1. Mr. Liu Yingjie was appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 19 September 2018 and re-designated as executive Director and
chairman of the Board on 28 June 2019.

2. Ms. Zhou Jin was appointed as executive Director on 12 April 2019.

3. Mr. Zhu Zhou resigned as executive Director and chairman of the
Board on 28 June 2019.

4. Ms. Jiao Fei resigned as executive Director on 12 April 2019.

5. Mr. Cao Hongmin was appointed as independent non-executive

Director on 22 January 2019.

6. Mr. Chan Chi Pan was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 19 July 2019.

7. Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 19 July 2019.

8. Mr. Liu Yang resigned as independent non-executive Director on 22
January 2019.
9. Mr. Chan Kam Wah resigned as independent non-executive Director

on 5 June 2019.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors in respect of the shares of the Company (the
“Code of Conduct”). After specific enquiries of all the
Directors by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard of dealing
set out in the Code of Conduct throughout the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate
and ample continuing professional development for the
Directors for a sound and effective internal system and
corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always
encouraged our Directors to attend relevant training courses
to receive the latest news ad knowledge regarding corporate
governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has encouraged
all Directors to attend at least one training course on the
updates of the GEM Listing Rules concerning good corporate
governance practices. The Company will, if necessary,
provide timely and regular trainings to the Directors to ensure
that they are kept abreast of the latest requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules. The Group has also adopted a policy
to reimburse the Directors for any relevant training costs and
expenses incurred concerning corporate governance and
internal control.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional
committees in compliance with the relevant GEM Listing
Rules and to assist the Board to discharge its duties.
Currently, three committees has been established, i.e.
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”). The function and responsibilities of these
committees have been set out in the relevant terms
of reference which are of no less stringent than that
stated in the Code. The relevant terms of reference of
each of the three can be found on the Group’s website
(www.gf-holdings.com). All committees have been provided
with sufficient resources and support from the Group to
discharge their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 2
August 2014 with its terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, and provisions
C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the Code. The majority of the Audit
Committee members must be independent non-executive
Directors and must be chaired by an independent non-
executive Directors. If any member of the Audit Committee
ceases to be a Director, he/she will cease to be a member of
the Audit Committee automatically.

The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an independent non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
In addition, the majority of the Audit Committee shall be
independent non-executive Directors. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Pang
and Mr. Cao Hongmin.

The Company complied with the requirement under Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2019, except during the period from 5 June
2019 to 18 July 2019, the Company had less than three Audit
Committee members, which results in the number of Audit
Committee members falling below the minimum number
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others
(for the complete terms of reference, please refer to the
Company’s website at www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
external auditors, and approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Company’s external
auditors;

2. to review and monitor the Company’s external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging the
Company’s external auditors to supply non-audit
services, if any;

4.  to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

5.  to discuss with the Company’s external auditors
questions and doubts arising in audit of annual
accounts;

6. to review the letter of the Company’s management from
the Company’s external auditors and the management’s
response;

7. to review the statement about the Company’s internal
control system as included in the Company’s annual
report prior to submission for the Board’s approval;

8. to review the Company’s financial reporting, financial
controls, internal control and risk management system;
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9. to discuss the internal control system with the 9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Company’s management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

to consider major investigation findings on internal  10.

control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to review the financial and accounting policies and  11.

practices of the Group;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can 12,

use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters; and

to report to the Board on that matters pursuant to the 13.

terms of reference of the Audit Committee and consider
other topics as defined by the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had MRBEHAN @ BHEZESRITT4XZ:HE -
held 4 meetings. The attendance records of the members RIREHRN BREZEGKEZHERL

of the Audit Committee during the Reporting Period are

summarized below:

gttt an R

Attendance/

Number of meetings

HERE EFRE

Member of Audit Committee EREEERE

Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (Note 1) TRBEEM T
Mr. Chan Chi Pan (Note 2) PR R, % A (A aE2)
Mr. Cao Hongmin (Note 3) MR S A (K E3)
Mr. Chan Kam Wah (Note 4) PR 8% 2 %% A& (B7 724)
Mr. Liu Yingjie (Note 5) BIEARFEE (N 2E)
Mr. Liu Yang (Note 6) 215 55 £ (F7 it6)
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Note:

1. Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter was appointed as chairman of Audit Committee
on 19 July 2019.

2. Mr. Chan Chi Pan was appointed as member of Audit Committee on
19 July 2019.

3. Mr. Cao Hongmin was appointed as member of Audit Committee on
22 January 2019.

4. Mr. Chan Kam Wah ceased as chairman of Audit Committee on 5
June 2019.

5. Mr. Liu Yingjie ceased as member of Audit Committee on 28 June
2019.

6. Mr. Liu Yang ceased as member of Audit Committee on 22 January
2019.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the Group’s audited results for the year ended
31 December 2018, the unaudited quarterly results of the
Group for the three months ended 31 March 2019, the
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the unaudited quarterly results of the
Group for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters.
The Audit Committee had also reviewed the Group’s
audited annual results for the Reporting Period, this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report complies
with the applicable standard, the GEM Listing Rules, and
other applicable legal requirements and those adequate
disclosures have been made. There is no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding
the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that
the Audit Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 2 August
2014 with terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34
to 5.36 at the GEM Listing Rules, and provision B.1.1 to B.1.4
of the Code. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Cao
Hongmin (Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Pan and Mr. Li Kar Fai
Peter, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, the primary responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include (for the complete terms
of reference, please refer to the Company’s website at
www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief
executive about their remuneration proposals for other
executive Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

o to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

4. to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

0. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries;
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Du

held 5 meetings. The attendance records of the members of

to review and approve compensation payable to 7.

executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements 8.

relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

ring the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee P

f==4
I ZEEKEMHFREBRIT:

the Remuneration Committee are summarized below:

Member of Remuneration Committee HFMZEEERKE

Mr. Cao Hongmin (Note 1) EHR A ML)

Mr. Chan Chi Pan (Note 2) PR A ST A (A 2 2)

Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (Note 3) TRBEEN )

Mr. Chan Kam Wah (Note 4) BR 87 2 5t 4 (A 5t 4)

Mr. Liu Yingjie (Note 5) BIEARFEE N 2SE)

Mr. Liu Yang (Note 6) BI85 e £ (M it6)

Note:

1. Mr. Cao Hongmin was appointed as chairman of Remuneration 1.
Committee on 22 January 2019.

2. Mr. Chan Chi Pan was appointed as member of Remuneration 2.
Committee on 19 July 2019.

er Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter was appointed as member of Remuneration 3.
Committee on 19 July 2019.

4. Mr. Chan Kam Wah ceased as member of Remuneration Committee 4.
on 5 June 2019.

5. Mr. Liu Yingjie ceased as member of Remuneration Committee on 28 5.
June 2019.

6. Mr. Liu Yang ceased as chairman of Remuneration Committee on 22 6.

January 2019
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed (1) the remuneration of Directors appointed
during the Reporting Period; (2) the terms of the service
agreement with the appointing Directors; and (3) the
remuneration packages and performance of the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that
the Remuneration Committee has properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 2 August
2014 with terms of reference in compliance with provisions
A.5.2 to A.5.6 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Chan Chi Pan (Chairman), Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter and Mr.
Cao Hongmin. all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the primary responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include (for the complete terms
of reference, please refer to the Company’s website at
www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendation on proposed changes, if any,
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

2. to review the Company’s board diversity policy and
the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the said policy;

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;
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4. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
held 4 meetings. The attendance records of the members of
the Nomination Committee are summarized below:
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Attendance/
Number of meetings
HERE B RE
Member of Nomination Committee BEEZEERE
Mr. Chan Chi Pan (Note 1) PR SO A (A At ) 0/0
Mr. Cao Hongmin (Note 2) EHREENF2) 3/3
Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter (Note 3) FRBREMNZES) 0/0
Mr. Chan Kam Wah (Note 4) PR &8 2E 5L A& (KT it 4) 3/3
Mr. Zhu Zhou (Note 5) KNS £ (K7 #25) 4/4
Mr. Liu Yang (Note 6) 255 5% & (K1 it6) 1/1
Note: & -
1. Mr. Chan Chi Pan was appointed as chairman of Nomination 1. BEREERZFE-—NFELAF+NAEZIT
Committee on 19 July 2019. BIEEZESFE -
2. Mr. Cao Hongmin was appointed as member of Nomination 2. EHRRAEERF—NF—A=-F+=—HEZ

Committee on 22 January 2019.

3. Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter was appointed as member of Nomination
Committee on 19 July 2019.

4. Mr. Chan Kam Wah ceased as member of Nomination Committee on
5 June 2019.

o Mr. Zhu Zhou ceased as chairman of Nomination Committee on 28
June 2019.

6. Mr. Liu Yang ceased as member of Nomination Committee on 22
January 2019

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, and reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors and the progress on the implementation of the
board diversity policy.
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Saved as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view
that the Nomination Committee has properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a nomination policy (‘Nomination
Policy”) on 1 January 2019. It aims at strengthen the
transparency and accountability of the Board and/or
Nomination Committee on election of directors including
independent non-executive directors. The Board will review
the Nomination Policy from time to time.

Selection Criteria of Directors

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate to be nominated to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendation to shareholders for
election as directors of the Company at the general meetings
and appoint him/her to fill casual vacancies.

° Qualifications and experience in the relevant industries
in which the Company’s business is involved or is going
to be involved;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

° Reputation for integrity; and

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures

The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members (if any)
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members;

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director of the Company. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional
information and documents, if considered necessary;

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the factors stated
above and make recommendation(s) to the Board’s
consideration and approval;

In the case of the re-election of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution of the directors to the Company and their
services, their participation and performance within the
Board, and whether such director still meets the needs to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Group has adopted policy in relation to the diversity of
the members of the Board and summary of the policy is as
follows:

1. selection of Board members will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; and

2. the Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the diversity policy from time to time
to ensure the effectiveness of the diversity policy.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019. It aims at enhancing
transparency of the Company and facilitating its shareholders
and the potential investors of the Company to make informed
investment decision relating to the Company. The Board will
review the dividend policy from time to time.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2.  the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

3. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

6. any other factors that the board of directors of the
Company deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro
rata according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits
as permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to declare or
distribute any dividend in the amount set out in any of the
plans or at all. The Company’s dividend distribution record
in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA") as the Group’s
external auditors to conduct audit of the financial results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
auditor’s remuneration paid or payable for the Reporting
Period is set out below:

Services rendered

= H K%

ER PR R B

Audit of financial statements
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Fee paid or payable
ENSENER

HK$
BT

780,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee (“Mr. Cheung”) is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Cheung has adequate
knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed
that he had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zhu Zhou resigned as the compliance officer of the
Company on 28 June 2019. Mr. Liu Yingjie has since
appointed as the compliance officer of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management. The Board must ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains effective internal control and risk
management systems to meet the objectives and safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the
Company.

The Board oversees the overall risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an ongoing basis
and endeavors to identify, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures. The risk management and internal control
systems compatible with the Commissioner of Sponsoring
Organization of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
— Integrated Framework 2013 principles are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to achieve
business objectives, and provide only reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy set out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of
the principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing
and managing risks within its division. It identifies and
assesses the principal risks on a quarterly basis with
mitigation plans to manage those risks;

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group,
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks
are identified and documented;

3.  The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal controls.
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The risk management framework, coupled with our internal
controls, ensures that the risk associated with our different
business units are effectively controlled in line with the
Group’s appetite.

The Company does not have an internal audit department
and engaged an external internal control consultant,
CT Partners Consultants Limited, to conduct review
on the internal control system of the Group during the
year. The review covering certain procedures on the
construction business in Hong Kong and implementation
of risk management policies of the Group and make
recommendations for improvement and strengthening of
internal control system. No significant areas of concern that
may affect the financial, operational, compliance, controls
and risk management of the Group have been identified.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall responsibility
to maintain the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience training programs and budget of accounting
and financial reporting function and the Board has reached
the conclusion that the Group’s risk management and
internal control system was in place and effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with an aim to ensure that the insiders
abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements and
to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in a manner which reflects the true and fair view of
the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group and
are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards
and principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions
required under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors are of
the view that the financial statements of the Group for each
financial year have been prepared on this basis.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there are no
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Statement of the Company’s external auditors’
responsibilities in respect of the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a forum in which
the Board and the Shareholders communicate directly
and exchange views concerning the affairs and overall
performance of the Group, and its future developments,
etc. At the AGM, the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) will answer questions raised by the
Shareholders. The external auditor of the Company is also
invited to be present at the AGM to address to queries of
the Shareholders concerning the audit procedures and the
auditors’ report.
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The forthcoming AGM of the Company is scheduled to be
held on 8 June 2020, the notice of which shall be sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to this
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”). EGMs shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. If, within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
all reasonable expenses incurred by the acquisition(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of
Directors

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgement of the
notices required under the Articles will commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to
the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars.
Shareholders may also make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information has been
made publicly available by the Company. All written
enquiries or requests may be forwarded to the Company’s
head office or by fax to (852) 3571 9460, or by email to
info@gf-holdings.com.

The addresses of the Company head office and the
Company’s share registrars can be found in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to
investors, the Group delivers information of the Group to the
public through various channels, including general meeting,
public announcement and financial reports. The investors are
also able to access the latest news and information of the
Group via our website (www.gf-holdings.com).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
shareholders and encourage them to attend the forthcoming
AGM and all future general meetings.

The shareholders may also forward their enquiries and
suggestions n writing to the Company to the followings:
Address: Suite 3513, Tower 6

The Gateway, Harbour City
9 Canton Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@gf-holdings.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
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AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS
LIMITED

Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”),
we believe operating sustainably and quality growth is
the key to our success and the economic basis for us to
practice social responsibility. The Group strives to integrate
environmentally friendly practices into all aspects of our daily
operations to grow its business and create a positive impact
in the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and
its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in (i) provision of
construction services and building materials supply,
including provision of concrete demolition and construction
engineering services, manufacturing and trading of
prefabricated precast construction components (ii) sales
of agriculture-related products, (iii) trading of clean coal
and others, and (iv) provision of insurance brokerage and
consultancy services in Hong Kong.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(“ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The information in this
ESG Report is derived from the Group’s official documents
and statistical data, as well as the integration and summary
of monitoring, management and operational information
provided by subsidiaries of the Group. Information on the
environmental and social aspects of the report is set out
below whilst information on the governance aspect is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 24 to 46.
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The reporting period of this ESG report is from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019 (“Reporting Period”). This report
highlights significant environmental and social impacts of
our business activities in provision of concrete demolition
and construction engineering services; manufacturing and
trading of prefabricated precast construction components,
which accounted for approximately 97.2% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue for the Reporting Period.

Unless otherwise specified, the key performance index
calculation (except staff composition) covers the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong. Quantitative disclosures in relation
to our offices in the PRC are excluded from this report due
to either relatively small environmental footprint or under
establishment. While this report only covers significant partial
operations of the Group and the Group aims to upgrade its
internal data collection procedures and gradually expand the
scope of disclosure in future reports when appropriate.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder’s expectation, view and feedback towards the
Group is of ultimate importance to its future development.
The Group has therefore committed itself to in-depth
communication with both internal and external stakeholders
and presents our updated operation condition to them
proactively through various channels. We integrate their
opinions with our daily operational decisions, strive
to balance the interests of the parties and satisfy the
expectations and demands of stakeholders. The table below
shows a list of the Group’s stakeholders.
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Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder

10 & 4 5l

BERFNDE
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Communication Channel
BERE

Investors

REE

Employees

EBE&

Customers

BP

Suppliers/
Contractors
HER e E

Shareholders
iR R
Potential investors

BEREE

Senior management

BREEE
Staff

BT

Direct workers
BEEIA
Potential recruits

BEREE

Main-contractors
HBAEER
Buyers

BEX

Ultimate users
RERAF

Material suppliers
M EH e T
Sub-contractors
DB

Service providers

AR5 B

Corporate website

1 E M

Annual and interim financial report
FERPEHMBRE

Quarterly reports and
announcements

TEBRERRE

Annual general meetings
BRERBERE

Disclosure of listed information

KR EME

Direct communication
HEAEBR

Independent focus groups and
interviews
BUBRIENEEREH
Training and seminars

= DS RO

Regular performance assessment
EHRBE A

CSR and volunteering activities
TrEMEEEREREY

Periodical meetings with contractors
and customers
HABRAREFEHARE
Customers assessment

BEPRA

Designated customer hotline
BEFER

Social media

HRER

Suppliers assessment

e Tk

Daily work review

FHI{ER

Site inspection/meeting with sub-
contractors
EMRE RO BRERAE
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Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder

& 45 BERFNDE

Communication Channel
BERE

Community e National and local community
B organisations
2 B & E A [ AR 4
Government e National and local governments
B 2B &8 i
e Regulators
EEKE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to gain better understanding on the expectations,
perceptions and concerns of our stakeholders, we have
engaged our management team and employees in identifying
the Group’s material ESG issues. With the identified material
ESG aspects, we strive to ensure proper measures on
significant issues are addressed adequately throughout our
business activities.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

With greater concerns from the general public on the impacts
of global warming and climate change, we acknowledge
our responsibility to protect the environment as an integral
part of our business operations. The Group is committed
to upholding high environmental standards, not only fulfil
relevant requirements under applicable laws and ordinances,
but also to become a sustainable leader and corporate
citizen in our community and industry.
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> Charitable donations
RERE
> Volunteering activities

SREAS

> Written correspondence
EEEH

> Statutory reports and general
disclosures
FEEBRER—RBE

EEMTM
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EMISSIONS

Engaging in construction activities as a contractor for years,
it is inevitably that our operation activities have impact on
our environment. Emissions from our daily business activities
mainly represent greenhouse gases (“GHG”) emissions,
noise, waste and effluents while carrying out project. In order
to combat the challenge of climate change, and to minimise
these emissions, our subsidiaries under the construction
segment implement industry-standard measures and
continues seeking practical means to mitigate their impact
from our operations. Across our operations, we have carried
out a number of green initiatives to reduce emissions
and waste, enhance resources efficiency and minimise
environmental footprint.

Environmentally-Friendly Demolition Methods

Construction materials such as sands and cements stored
outdoor as well as the dust of the exposed construction area
are easily scattered. In order to prevent the generation of
dust during our works, methods such as scarifying and shot-
blasting are adopted. They are innovative and environmentally
friendly that equipped with vacuum cleanser as a result little
to no dust is emitted. It also produces excellent bonding
characteristics that reduce the risk of coating failure to
improve road safety and maximise floor life.

For projects that involve indoor demolition works, demolition
machines are utilised as the robots are powered by 3-phase
electricity and equipped with hydraulic breaker or hydraulic
crusher, no exhaust gas and minimal vibration is caused
during works. Being operated by remote control, our
workers are safer as they not required to stay close to the
working area. In accordance with the Air Pollution Control
(Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation, all our
machineries used on site are approved or exempted from the
Environmental Protection Department (“EPD”).

Splitting/Bursting is a demolition method that a splitter
is inserted into a hole of the concrete structure drilled
beforehand and bursts the structure so that no noise and
vibration will be caused during operations.
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Prefabricated Construction

Unlike traditional construction methods, prefabricated
construction methods are constructed in a factory so that
it allows for more accurate operation and materials to be
recycled and reused in-house. Considerable amount of
dust and noise emissions can be further reduced attribute
to the controlled environment of the production factory.
In our production factory, we have introduced a water
spraying device for daily maintenance of sub-assemblies and
prevention of dust scattering.

The largest source of the Group’s GHG emissions, was
generated from scope 1 — direct emissions or removals from
sources, it was attributed to the electricity use of lighting,
air-conditioning, electrical appliances and machineries and
equipment during operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, air emissions
generated by the Group were as follows:

HEAXESE

HEEGEENEATR  REANEZENZX
REIRET UWEBERERBEMNRE
MEZABRBAME - BELEERE
MERBRXIENMRE  RKERRZ N
AE-—ZRD REMOEERE - &
PIslETHEKEE  ARAAENRE
M AN B LE X EE DAY -

AEENREREBHIRNKAREXREE
Bl — BERREREHFBSREE - T
BEAREEDNHNRA  =6H ExK
W ERENHE -

HE-T-NF+-A=+—BLFE.
AEEELOERFEHRMT -

Emissions data from RERREFENHE
Gaseous Fuel BE &
Consumption
Nitrogen Oxide (NO ) RELWINO) kg T
Sulphur Oxide (SO,) mEWSO) g
Particulate Matter (PM) R kg T2

414.69 422.53
685.15 647.83
37.29 37.94
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or the year ended 31 December 2019, GHG emissions
enerated by the Group were as follows:

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)

ERBERBHERRRER(EE)

GHG emissions from mobile Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne
combustion sources — &1Lz (COo,) 7
B B TR B R = R B HE AL Methane (CH,) kg
F 45 (CH,) ¥
Nitrous oxide (N,0O) tonne
EILTAEN,0) 8

Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
HEREERERBHK(EE2)

Electricity purchased from power Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne

companies* —&1e#H(CO,) ]
RENRRIBENE N
Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg
RPEERARBENKER —&1e#H(CO,) T

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)
HttEERERBHR(EEI)

Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne

% E B R 0 B AL — LR (CO,) =
Electricity used for processing Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg
fresh water and sewage by —&1e#(Co,) F=

government department**
BEHBPFAERENRERKK
VKTl BR) R = R B BE
Business air travel by employees Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne

EERYL MBI D —&1e#H(COo,) W

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - g REAWME

BE-FT—AF+-A=+—BLERE
ARBELNLERBAERMT

111.00 105.056
101.80 82.05
8.18 6.89
34.61 41.54
23.10 90.68
18.24 2.79
7713 122.11
15.49 5.43

*k

Electricity consumption for our accommodation in Beverly Villas is
based on the latest available data, which covers the periods 12 April
2019 to 31 December 2019.

Water consumption for our offices and accommodation in 2/F in
Cheong Shing Industrial Building, 6/F in Cheong Shing Industrial
Building, and Yen Yau Mansion are based on the latest available
data, which covers the periods 1 January 2019 to 31 January 2019,
1 January 2019 to 12 August 2019, and 1 January 2019 to 12 August
2019 respectively.

>k

EMEEBECtENEEREE NEREHA
SE8E REHMAE-_ZT-—NLFHEA+=H
E-T-NF+ZA=+—H-

BRMEERTH¥ AE2E BEBRT¥AE6E
MMERREMNBAZEERBERXKENERR
FABEE REHMEINA-ZT—NLE—
A—BE-_Z—AF—A=+—H -ZZF—h
F-—A—HEZZEZ—-—NFNA+ZAEK=ZF
—hE—A—BE-_ZE—AENA+=H-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £

53




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - g REAWRE

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Construction waste from daily operations includes general
inert waste and non-inert waste. The major approach to
managing construction waste in Hong Kong is the use of
public filling areas for reusable inert construction waste
and landfills for non-inert construction waste. The fill banks
temporarily stockpile the inert construction waste for later
reuse in reclamation and site formation works. In general,
the Group categorises the waste from construction works
before removal from the site. General inert waste from work,
such as rocks, shall be reused as filling materials at the site
if applicable or disposed to public fill for reclamation in the
future. Other waste that is not applicable for recycle or reuse
shall be discarded to the public filling areas to conserve
landfill. We are committed to only disposing at legitimate
waste disposal facilities or through licensed collectors to
collect and dispose of waste.

In respect of office waste, we shall continue to encourage
our employees to fully utilise all materials to avoid producing
unnecessary waste and to reduce paper usage through
electronic means.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount of non-
hazardous waste produced by the Group was as follows:

BEYEE
FEEEEENREEMEE —REBEM
NIEBMHREY TEEEREEREYNT
BRERTBANBUHERERYKES
NREBLE MFBUEREENSER
HIERER - HEHNELREFHEEZEREY
HERBERRBESRMBFETR - —
mEs  AEESERETIREYRL
BREENHESB -ITREELEN KRB
HEYMERE EERBRLTEMAE
WROEEMHRXEEARELERER
BREBZB R TEAREREER
MEBEMAIRZREATELTBEAGHERR -
BPBNEERAEZEMREERMEXHAE
BERKEBREREEEY -

AMAEEYME  AMEEEZBE
BRDERMAEMH AR 2T UENR
E NEEEAEFTARBLIBARE
ﬁHO

HE-T-NET-A=+—BLFH-
AREELHREERNOT -

Construction waste EEEYERE tonne/construction site 5.39 118
intensity WE/ T
Construction waste EEREEY) tonne & 2,469.69 2,150.70
Due to our business nature (construction, development and HREFIMEEES GEE B LEE

sales of agriculture-related products and trading business),
no significant hazardous waste was generated from our
operations during the Reporting Period.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group’s major use of resources includes energy and
water consumption. For energy use, both office and the
project consume electricity and fuels for vehicle use. Fuel
consumption attributes mostly to equipment operation and
ground transportation of equipment during delivery, while
electricity consumption mainly attribute to office use. We
place great emphasis on resource conservation and strives
to enhance the energy efficiency by strengthening the
maintenance of construction equipment, optimising operation
standards and adopting energy-saving measures.

Several initiatives have been implemented in offices and
construction sites to control energy consumption as follows:

Office o
WAE
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&IRER

AEBHNEZERMERBEERLKE
Fo-HREREAME  BRANKEIE
LRTRRBETIZHREIMERRE -
KRELE FE R EB 0 58 B R B IRE R A
EHRNEREL@ER  MEHEREA
IZRARNMAERE BHMASEER
BEREH BHEBEERERE &
LR 1E IR R IR AN BT BE 15 M 1R = BE TR A

):?7( o

MAEREEMBAEGIERERME
TR IREE T

Set and maintain average room temperatures between 24T and 26 C;
RERBRHTHEERRBER24ZE26FE 2 H:

U Switch off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors) before leaving

the workplace;

BEFRTESAAIAMARAEZRE(WITHNE EREER)

o Energy-friendly electrical appliances and devices, including LED lighting, and
computers and projectors, have been installed; and
RHRELERERERE BELEDBAREREEREZHK &

U Choose electrical appliances with high energy label (i.e. Grade 1 — most energy
efficient in the market) from the Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme
(“MEELS”) under the Energy Efficiency (Labelling of Products) Ordinance (Cap. 598)
EERAGRGERME (EmZR) ROID(FE698F) T h e RU S FHA 2 (3]
FMERRBEERAE D ESSHEARREAIEF— R -ETHLERARRE)H

EA

Site °
b B8

Switch off non-essential lightings as well as idle machinery and equipment; and

BEAVENRAARBEOEMNEERE &

o Various communications (posters, signs and memos) for promoting energy
conservation have been launched to raise construction workers’ awareness.

ik S TEIR 1B AL VB A X (B R - B3

7~ AE

) NIESREETANSREER
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Apart from office operation, the major source of the Group’s
water consumption is from our construction segment. To
promote water conservation, the Group incorporated various
water conservation measures in both offices and project
sites. Control measures like protection of drainage system
and discharge point to avoid blockage and conduction of
regular self-monitoring checks to ensure the quality of the
effluent discharged meet the prescribed standards, are
being introduced in our daily operations. At our construction
sites, wastewater is collected and properly treated by on
site wastewater treatment facilities and then reused for dust
suppression and vehicle wheel washing or ground mud to
reduce fresh water consumption. Our sub-contractors were
also encouraged to work closely with our staff to implement
appropriate measures to prevent the waste of fresh water on
site.

Since buildings account for a significant portion of the
total energy consumption and GHG emissions, we fully
understand our role as contractor and actively seeking
opportunities to increase our contributions. As we look to
the future, we target to remain tight controls on resources
consumption and achieve sustainable development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the resources HE-T—hAhF+_A=+—HILFE"
consumption by the Group were as follows: REENBERBEFRET

Electricity Consumption®* & =* kWh 54,929.06 65,616.46
TR
kWh/employee 446.58 428.87
TR BB

Gas Consumption FERE MJ 1,848.00 7,254.00
KEFH
MJ/employee 15.02 47.41
KEEEE

Water Consumption** AKE** m3 87.15 171.38
m3/employee 0.71 1.12
MK EE

* Electricity consumption for our accommodation in Beverly Villas is  * BMEEERENEEREE DEREHA
based on the latest available data, which covers the periods 12 April SEE REHMA-ZT-NAFMA+=AH
2019 to 31 December 2019. EZE-AF+ZHA=+—RH-

> Water consumption for our offices and accommodation in 2/F in  ** BMEERIXAE2RE ERIXAE6E

Cheong Shing Industrial Building, 6/F in Cheong Shing Industrial MMERREMBRAZERBERKENERR
Building, and Yen Yau Mansion are based on the latest available MASEE REHEONA_ZT—LF—
data, which covers the periods 1 January 2019 to 31 January 2019, A—BZ=Z—-—hhF—A=+—H -ZF—h
1 January 2019 to 12 August 2019, and 1 January 2019 to 12 August F-A—HEZZ—-NFNA+ZARKZE
2019 respectively. —hWEF—A—RE=-_ZF—hAFNA+=H-

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not MRB|EHAN  AEBE XKL ESRE
involve any use of packaging materials. VR ER -
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

In compliance with applicable environmental legislation,
our operating activities have no significant impact on
the environment and natural resources. For the sake of
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, we regularly
assess the environmental risks of our operations and adopt
preventive measures as necessary to reduce the risks.

In managing our emissions, the Group has compiled with the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354), Water Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 358), Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400), Dumping at
Sea Ordinance (Cap. 466), Environment Impact Assessment
Ordinance (Cap. 499) and other regulations promulgated by
governments and currently applicable to the Group, as well
as environmental requirements from customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
not aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to air and GHG emissions, noise control, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group values people and considers a respectful and
fair working environment to be vital to its operations. It is
always the Group’s initiative to provide a fair and competitive,
periodically reviewed compensation package to attract and
retain quality talents, in the form of a minimum wage security,
maximum working hours, compensatory leave, overtime
allowance, discretionary bonus, mandatory provident fund or
pension security, social insurance and rewards for long-term
services.
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The Group has established a series of internal policies
related to employment according to anti-discrimination
ordinances and the guidance under Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57), Laws of Hong Kong, the Labour Law and Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, as well as industry features and
practices to ensure that our employees are treated equally,
and their employment, remuneration and promotion will not
be affected by their social identities such as age, gender,
marital status, family status, sexual orientation, race,
nationality or religion.

A comprehensive human resources management policy
was formulated to support human resources function,
which covers guidelines on recruitment and promotion,
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods,
appraisal, training and other benefits, etc. With reference to
the prevailing market standard, the level of compensation of
our employees is reviewed annually. We motivate employees
by promotion and salary increment based on results of their
annual performance appraisal, and to award discretionary
bonus in addition to basic salary. In our demolition works
subsidiary, a long service award is given to those employees
that have been employed for over 10 years as a reward of
loyalty.

We respect the voices of our employees. All employees
are welcomed to make comments and suggestions
through various communication channels such as letters,
emails or reports to their direct supervisors, department
heads, or Human Resources Department. All the received
communications and the identities of those employees are
kept confidential and dealt with the highest priority.

Staff Composition

The Group’s principal businesses are prefabricated
construction and demolition works, which demand plenty of
physical labour force, hence, traditionally male employees
are a majority in the workforce of the construction business.
However, the Group has also committed to striking a
balance between male and female employees in its working
environment and providing equal opportunity towards
different gender employees.
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As at 31 December 2019, we employed a total of 123 staff, R-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—H HMAHELE
including back office and site staff. All our staff members are 123% BT BIEHHBPFIRMBET -

located in Hong Kong and the PRC. FIEEITHMNREBERFE -
Employees by Gender Employees by Employment Category
BRI B S HNES RBEENESNES
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Staff Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the Group has a turnover
rate of approximately 63%. Such high turnover rate was
primarily due to the change in our business strategies of
withdrawing and repositioning the sales of LED light sources
and agriculture-related products in the market. The employee
turnover rate by gender is quite biased this year with 72% of
our male staff and 24% of our female staff leaving the Group.
Geographically, 51% of staff who are based in Hong Kong
left the Group, whereas in the PRC 76% of our staff left.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employee
turnover categorised by age was as follows: 100% of those in
the 18 to 30 years old bracket left the Group, 45% of those
from the 31 to 40 years old bracket, 75% out of the 41 to 50
bracket, 77% of the 51 to 60 bracket, and 14% of those who
were over 60 years old left the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
not aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to compensation and dismissal,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

recruitment and

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Recognising that construction is one of the higher risk
industries in occupational health and safety (“OHS”), we put
safety first and are committed to maintaining a workplace
which is safe for our people. To ensure that all employees are
equipped with adequate knowledge in protecting themselves
from occupational hazards, the Group has provided trainings
for all levels of employees.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations
do not possess high risk areas related to OHS to its
employees, except for our construction business. As there
are machineries and other equipment in the construction
sites, employees will be more prone to industrial accidents.
Hence, we are determined to ensure that all construction
works are carried out to achieve at practically high health
and safety standards. We focus on ensuring the safety of our
construction workers through providing protective equipment
such as safety helmets, safety shoes and high visibility
clothing to all personnel who work at construction sites.
Relevant OHS training is provided to our staff and workers
such as safety induction training, safety toolbox talks,
specific training for high-risk activities, periodic emergency
contingency drills to heighten employee awareness of
workplace hazards and ensure they are competent to
discharge their OHS responsibilities and obligations, and
respond to emergencies. To better manage the health and
safety issues in our operations, designated personnel, Safety
Officer, are engaged to oversee safety issues. Safety Officers
regularly review and check for updates of relevant laws, and
perform site inspections to ensure prompt corrections are to
be taken to prevent incidents. Our on-site foremen and site
supervisors are to co-operate with Safety Officers to ensure
any breaches or unsafe conditions are rectified promptly.

To initiate improvement in OHS issues, our construction
business has continuously registered as a Green Cross
Group member under the Occupation Safety and Health
Council (“OSHC”). As a member of the Green Cross Group,
we are able to access to the OSHC’s library to obtain latest
information and participate in study missions and workshops
to facilitate experience sharing and gain deeper insights into
implementation of best practices. The Group has continued
to optimise its work practices and daily management for the
sake of its staff’s health and safety with the aim to create
a safe, healthy and comfortable working environment. To
this end, our operations fully comply with applicable laws
and regulations such as the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Cap. 282,), Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance
(Cap. 59), Laws of Hong Kong, and Work Safety Law of the
PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
record significant work-related injuries and fatalities. We
target to remain zero accident and fatalities in the coming
years.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group in relation to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We recognised that our construction workers are exposed
to higher injury risks than office staff. In order to minimise
work-related injuries, our site foremen, site supervisors and
Safety Officers conduct causal briefing to all site workers
when necessary. Causes of accidents among construction
industry are identified and corresponding recommendations
or training sessions will be provided to workers to avoid the
reoccurrence of similar accidents.

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and
professionally trained employees to its business growth
and future success. We are committed to providing career
development platform for our employees where everyone
can achieve their career goals. We have invested resources
on the career development of employees and encouraged
employees from each level to participate in order to
enhance the competitiveness of the Group and the relevant
individuals. The Group also acknowledges the importance
of conducting performance appraisal with employees. On an
annual basis, performance appraisal is conducted between
management and employees for continuous improvement.
Employees are able to communicate and seek professional
advice from their supervisors on their personal career
development training.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - LB RERWRE

HE-T-NEF-A=+—BLFH-
AEBELBEEEATERACES -
BT TR R REERBTETE -

RBERR  AEEHTAANBEMER
ARREHZE2TERRIRERERR
HECEMHASEABREATENA
BIYEHREN -

%R REH

BPRANMBABLRAEIIEAEER
BESHNXERAR - REERSIE
WRET WHWRREEERZXE2IFESE
ERERRAZBHBT AETHEMR -
BHPBERETESEHRRALA T AR
HERNEZHIEIRE  ABLEMU
EWMBRELE -

REBRAKEARLEEZZINE
BEHENBEBERRAKRKNEBE
Zo-HMBORBERHENEMMER
BEBSOREXERYE - ZMEAE
ENBEXERRAZER LB SR
BEZ2E NRESASELREBAEN
BEN -AKENABHREEETER
ERNERME - BMEFYEEELE
ERREREZ NERFERE - E
Bl gt HE ABFEREIE ER#ET
EBYSREEXER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3 63




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - LB REARE

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group highly respects human rights and freedom, and
strictly prohibits the uses of child and forced labour in our
workplace by adhering with the Employment of Children
Regulations and Employment of Young Persons (Industry)
Regulations under the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57),
Laws of Hong Kong, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Protection of the Minors. Comprehensive recruitment
procedures are in place to check and verify the age of
applicants before commencement of work. To prevent the
employment of child labour, we require the candidates to
present their valid proof of identity to ensure that they have
reached the legal working age. Important details such as job
duties, locations and working hours of the staff are also set
out clearly in the employment contract to protect their rights
and interests and forced labour is strictly prohibited.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
not aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to preventing child and forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has always been placing great emphasis on
product quality to protect the interests of our clients. As
supplier and contractor management is a crucial component
of the Group’s quality control, the Group stringently manage
suppliers and sub-contractors to avoid any inferior materials
acquired and adopt strict quality control over the production
and construction process. We collaborate with suppliers,
service providers, material manufacturers and sub-
contractors who share our goals in responsible management
of business ethics, quality, safety, labour, environment
management in order to provide the best solutions to our
clients.
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Through the implementation of a robust procurement and
tendering mechanism, we select reliable and competent
business partners from potential organisations in adherence
to the principle of equal opportunity and fair competition.
In respect of suppliers or sub-contractors selection, a list
of approved suppliers is in place and we will only select
suppliers and appoint sub-contractors from this approved list
unless individually reviewed and approved by management
or specifically requested by the client.

Looking forward, the Group aims to promote local economic
development and reduce carbon footprint, by prioritising
local suppliers by shortening the distance of transportation.
In addition to geographical factors, we expect our suppliers
to meet the requirements including but not limited areas
such as child or forced labour, health and safety, working
hours, discrimination and disciplinary processes.

During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by
geographical region of the Group was as follows:

Asia (Except Hong Kong
and the PRC),
M (BER
REIRRSM)
1

The PRC
HE
5
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

To meet the demand of our clients, the Group has developed
its internal management system and closely monitored its
project execution process, with an aim to render premium
and reliable service to our clients.

In our prefabricated construction business, we have
established and implemented a quality management system
(“QMS”) in our operations, which is a conformity with
internationally recognised ISO 9001:2015 standard certified
by Fugro Certification Services Limited in Hong Kong. This
system helps us to comply with the relevant laws, regulations
and contract obligations that are applicable to our products
and services; control the quality issues systematically to
enhance our customers’ satisfaction as well as continuously
improve quality performance in our operations. The Group
also provides adequate training to all levels of employees
to raise their awareness of QMS in their responsible tasks.
On the other hand, the design, production and supply of
our product, Ready Mixed Concrete, has obtained the
Quality Scheme for the Production and Supply of Concrete
(“QSPSC”) under the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
which is also certified by Fugro Certification Services
Limited.

During the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or
claims from our customers arising from the quality issues of
the work performed either by us or sub-contractors, which
in the view of Directors, is attributable to the effective quality
control measures.

In our ordinary course of business, we hardly get access
to the personal information of our clients or confidential
of enterprises. However, we attach great attention to the
protection of privacy and intellectual property. In compliance
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486), Laws
of Hong Kong, we ensure that all the collected business data
from our clients will be treated as strictly confidential and
properly dealt with by our staff. Our clients’ data can only
be assessed by designated personnel to prevent information
leakage to unauthorised persons or parties.
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Relating to respecting intellectual property, employees should
also refrain from having unlicensed computer software on their
computers at the workplace. The Group complies with the
intellectual property (the “IP”) right regulations to protect the
interest of the Group and our clients and requires our suppliers
to comply with the IP rights for confidentiality and integrity.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
not aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
in relation to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating products and services provided and
methods of redress.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We believe in fairness and honesty in business dealing and
we do not tolerate corruption, bribery, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities in connection with any of our
business operations. The Group strictly adhere to relevant
regulations and laws, such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201), the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615), Laws of
Hong Kong, and the Criminal Law of the PRC.

To facilitate identification of suspected cases of corruption,
money laundering and other misconducts, the Group has
developed a Whistle-Blowing Policy and stated in the staff
handbook. Employees are prohibited from accepting or
offering any advantages, including but not limited to rewards,
gifts, fees, loans, services, from or to any clients, suppliers
or person having a business relationship with the Group. In
the event that they identify any irregularities, staff may report
to relevant senior management, and we will protect the
identity of the informer. Detailed investigation on the reported
event shall be conducted followed by appropriate actions
according to the result.
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The tendering process is vital to our business and all
tendering documents are kept confidential and restricted to
concerned parties only. It must be done in a fair manner in
order to protect the interest of the Group and our clients.
Employees responsible for tendering must comply with the
Competition Ordinance (Cap. 619), Laws of Hong Kong,
refraining themselves exchanging or communicating any
sensitive information with competitors, participating in price
fixing, imposing restrictions on clients and abusing the
dominant market position.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
not aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

At Glory Flame, we sincerely believe that our growth
is closely tied to our surrounding community and the
environment. Together with fulfilling corporate social
responsibility in our daily operations, the Group also
proactively to seek appropriate participation in social welfare
activities and/or donations in near future.

The Group shall keep abreast latest trends and best
practices related to environmental protection at construction
sites, and workers’ health and safety. We also encourage
employees to actively participate in community and voluntary
work to further the benefits of local communities and
render assistance to the needy. Meanwhile, the Group has
strengthened its ties and ensured continuous communication
with members of the community where it operates, in an
effort to advocate a caring and serving spirit.
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

Air Emissions

& R BE
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RBBERE

Nitrogen Oxide (NO )
Sulphur Oxide (SO )
Particulate Matter (PM)

"ELHmNO)
&L (SO,)
R

kg T

kg T 72

414.69 422.53
685.15 647.83
37.29 37.94

GHG Emissions

BEREHER

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)
BEEBERE KR EBR (EE1)

GHG emissions from mobile
combustion sources

B IR B TR YR = KRB BRI

Energy indirect emissions
ERE R (ER2)
Electricity purchased from
power companies
RENRRIBEZES
Gas purchased from
Towngas

RPERRARBENKR

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
— &1k (CO,)
Methane (CH,)

B %2 (CH,)

Nitrous oxide (N,O)
AT AN,0)
(Scope 2)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
~ &1k (Co,)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
~ &1k (Co,)

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)

H b B £ BE (IR 3)

Paper waste disposed at
landfills

REEEREE 2 BER

Electricity used for
processing fresh water and
sewage by government
department

KT EBFIfE A E R E R K
KFKFEIBERERE
HE R

Business air travel by
employees

BERYLRELIIAE

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
~— &1k (CO,)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
~— &1k (CO,)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
~ &1k (Co,)

tonne
7

kg
T
tonne
48

tonne
7

kg
T

tonne
73

kg
T

tonne
7

111.00 105.05
101.80 82.05
8.18 6.89
34.61 41.54
23.10 90.68
18.24 2.79
7713 12211
15.49 5.43
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Resources Consumption

BRHE

Electricity Consumption* &= * kWh 54,929.06 65,616.46
TR
kWh/employee 446.58 428.87
TRE EE

Gas Consumption FERE MJ 1,848.00 7,254
KEH
MdJ/employee 15.02 47.41
KEEEE

Water Consumption ** AKE** m3 87.15 171.38
m3/employee 0.71 1.12
SR R’E

* Electricity consumption for our accommodation in Beverly Villas is  * BUEEEENEEREEDER &I

based on the latest available data, which covers the periods 12 April
2019 to 31 December 2019.

*k

** Water consumption for our offices and accommodation in 2/F in
Cheong Shing Industrial Building, 6/F in Cheong Shing Industrial
Building, and Yen Yau Mansion are based on the latest available
data, which covers the periods 1 January 2019 to 31 January 2019,
1 January 2019 to 12 August 2019, and 1 January 2019 to 12 August
2019 respectively.

BEE REHMAE-_ZT-—LFMmA+=AH
E-T-NF+ZA=+—H-

RMEERTH¥ ANE2E EBRTY¥ AE6E
RERRKENHAZEREERKEDNERR
HOUSHE REHEINA-ZT—NE—
A—Bz_Z—AF—A=+—H -ZF—h
F-A—HEZZEZ-—NAFNA+ZARKZZE
—hE—A—BE-_ZT—AENA+=RH-

Construction waste BEEYEE tonne/construction site
intensity WE /T i
Construction waste BEREY tonne
g

5.39 118

2,469.69 2,150.70
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Total Workforce

Total Workforce

No. of People No. of People
in 2019 in 2018
ETHAH BT @8
—E-hEF —E-N\F
A" A B
By Gender %t B8l 2
Male B 98 125
Female g 25 28
By Age Group RERAERE D
18 — 30 years old 18 30 5% 10 21
31 — 40 years old 31 £40 5% 33 36
41 — 50 years old 41 B50 7% 36 44
51 — 60 years old 51 £60 7% 30 36
Over 60 years old 60 BRIA 14 16
By Geographical Region %t & & 5
Hong Kong BB 65 72
The PRC H 58 81
By Employee Category REBERNE S
Senior Management EBRER 14 18
Middle Management RREEE 21 17
Entry Level MZET 88 118
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By Gender
Male
Female

By Age Group

18 — 30 years old
31 — 40 years old
41 — 50 years old
51 — 60 years old
Over 60 years old

% 1 51 81 5
Sl

M

BRERMARNE D
182 305%
31E40%%
M E505%
5126057
605K A £

By Geographical Region % ith & & 5

Hong Kong
The PRC

&
P E

Employment Turnover
in 2019
“E-NEFREREKER

No. of
People
A

Turnover
Rate

71 72%

6 24%
10 100%
15 45%
27 75%
23 77%

2 14%
33 51%
44 76%

Employment Turnover
in 2018
—E-N\FREERKBNR
No. of Turnover
People Rate
A MR =

47 38%
21 75%
18 86%
29 80%
13 30%

8 22%

0 0%
17 24%
51 63%

By Gender
Male
Female

By Category
Senior Management
Middle Management
Entry Level

N L
s

pegid

RERE S
mMEERE
FPRERE
THET

Average
training hours
completed

in 2019

No. of Hours
ZE-NF
FHERR

32 9 B B

/N B 2

Average
training hours
completed

in 2018

No. of Hours
—E-N\E
58 58K

& )l B 2K
N

7.60 1.42
3.50 0.25

0 1.78
3.50 0.82
7.40 117
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Percentage
of employees
being trained

in 2019
Rate

=t B2
2 ES
HAtk

b =

Percentage
of employees
being trained

in 2018
Rate
—FE-NF
ZillEER
Bt

o g

By Gender %t B8l 2

Male B 17% 18%
Female M 8% 7%
By Category RERE S

Senior Management = AR E B 0% 1%
Middle Management PREREE 5% 12%
Entry Level UHRET 56% 18%

Number of Suppliers by

Geographical Region

EwEEINHEREE

Hong Kong BB 64 67

The PRC A 5 10

Asia (except Hong Kong and TN (BB R BRI 1 1
the PRC)

Europe B 1 2

North America bx 0 0
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
under Appendix 20 to the Rule Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The following table provides and overview of the general
disclosures and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of
various aspects under each subject area, which are either
cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the Report or
supplementing the Report with additional information.

BIR -HEREBRANBRERS

ABEDREZEBREIIAERAF
Ex LR E200RE - HERE
AmEESIIRE - PRBIMESTER
BIEATNTREEN—RKENBRE
M 15 R ([KPIs)) - I # 5 %% &5 10 B 5 48
LM BHRIBHBINGA -

Description Reference Remark
i 2E B
ENVIRONMENTAL

R

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS

BEA:HERY

General Information on: (a) the policies; and Protecting the

Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws and  Environment

—REE regulations that have a significant RERR

impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
FEBRNMABERBEN  MKEL
WHHES AEREEEREVHNEL
FW (@ BR: ROETHETAR
BATENHEBZZNAONEH -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions
B &N emissions data. HE R
EEA11 PR R R AR R HE P BUR -
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Description Reference
i aft 2%
ENVIRONMENTAL
BB
Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
BEA: BEHY
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions
REEN (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, HE B
IEEAL2 intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RERBAERE (AN E) R (W&
REE(MAGESEN - BIEXE
FTHE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced N/A We do not generate
BREEN (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, i@ hazardous waste in our
E1EAL3 intensity (e.g. per unit of production operations.
volume, per facility). BMELEPI REE
FMEEEEREEYRE (A E) R BEEEY -
(WEREE(WMNSEESEM - B8
RMEFTE) ©
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Waste
BREEN (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Management
EEAL4 intensity (e.g. per unit of production ~ BE¥) & I#
volume, per facility).
FFTEAEREREEYREE (UG E) R
(EREE(WMNSESEMN B
FMEETE) °
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate Waste
BREN emissions and results achieved. Management
EEALS HUREERENEBEBRAAEAR - EMERE
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#

Description Reference
ot g%
ENVIRONMENTAL

R

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS

BEAT: EBRY

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and Waste
BREN non-hazardous wastes are handled, =~ Management
EZA1.6 reduction initiatives and results BEY) B R

achieved.
HIEEEERESTEEYN LA -
BIEEEENEBEEMEKRRE -

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EHEA2: ERER

General Policies on the efficient use of Use of Resources
Disclosure resources, including energy, water and & JR &
—RIEE other raw materials.

ERERAERERFEER KEREMR

MR BIBUER o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources
BREEN consumption by type (e.g. electricity, &R & B
BEA21 gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and

intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RENESHNERER S HEEER
B Raoh) @EE ( UTETERE)
&M E(MAEESBEM - BER M

H) o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and Use of Resources
REEN intensity (e.g. per unit of production BIRfE A
IBEA2.2 volume per facility).

%%7J<E&MF(ZZDLA1FE””Q &

AR MR HE)
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources
BREN initiatives and results achieved. BIRE A
IBEA2.3 Hmge REA SR ERAAGEAR -
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Description Reference
#ut 2%
ENVIRONMENTAL

RE

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
BEA2: EREH

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any Use of Resources The Group encounters
BAREN issue in sourcing water that is fit for & JR & A no issue in sourcing
EEA2.4 purpose, water efficiency initiatives water that is fit for

and results achieved. purpose.

it SR EGE KR LRI BRI A & B R SREUE B KR

SRR TR B RAERR - EREEMEE -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for N/A We do not generate
BREN finished products (in tonnes) and, if 8 H significant packaging
I51EA2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit material waste in our

produced. operations.

HXmATABEEMHNEE (EAE) BMELSERITREE

MnER)BEEENGE - BERBEMBEY -

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
BHA3: RERXARER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s Environment and
Disclosure significant impact on the environment Natural Resources
—RIFEE and natural resources. RERRKAER
AR B 1 /\ﬂﬁaiﬁ&?&%ﬁﬁ P&
AZENB R
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts  Environment and
BREN of activities on the environment and  Natural Resources
EZA3.1 natural resources and the actions RRERERAEIR

taken to manage them.
MM EREBHRERRAAZERNE
TERCENEREBTENITE -
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Description Reference

# g2z

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

EEREIER
Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT
EEB1:EE
General Information on: (a) the policies; and Employment and
Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws and Labour Practices
—RIEE regulations that have a significant EREERBIER
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hour, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, other
benefits and welfare.
EHEFMEEE BEREN IE
8 RE TERE 2t R
I 48 LA K B 15 38 K AR A EY - (@) ISR
o) BTHETATEAZENEH
FEREBROIER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender employment Employment
BREN type, age group and geographical and Labour
E&EB1.1 region. Practices — Staff
ZR - BEER FHRAR KME Composition
EoMEBHEE - EERSTER—
BT
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Employment and
BREEN group and geographical region. Labour Practices
{5 EB1.2 ZHER - FRRARN R EE S AIEE — Staff Turnover
MK = o EBERSIER—
BImK
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Description Reference Remark
#ut 2% Bt

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
BREREIER

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EHEB2 .- @EEZE

General Information on: (a) the policies; and Health and Safety
Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws and @ fEE % &
—RIEE regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employee from
occupational hazards.
EARELZE2TIERERREES @
RBEMRBEZN (@ BK: Rbp)ESF
HETABERZENEBERZRR

BlEy & # o

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety
BREMN fatalities. f@RET 2
EEB2.1 ETEBERMBETHABRLEE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
BREX ETBEXRIERS - EREZZ
EEB2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
REEN safety measures adopted, how they  EFEHEZ %
i5#EB2.3 are implemented and monitored.

R FTRANBRERER 28
AREERAITRERT X -
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Description Reference

# g2z

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
BREREIER

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
EHEB3: & & &iEI

General Policies on improving employees’ Development and

Disclosure knowledge and skills for discharging  Training

—REE duties at work. Description for training 2% & & £ 3l
activities.

ERRTEEBTIIEBRENMER
REEMBR R - fL T INES) -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and

BREN by gender and employee category Training

£ ZB3.1 (e.g. senior management, middle R RE
management).

BUERMEEEN(NESREERE -+
REREBEF)EINZIEREBDLL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and
BREEN per employee by gender and employee Training
£ ZB3.2 category. ERE RIS

di

RUERNNMEEERE D SR EE
P2 B B 15 B 8K o

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
EHEB4: % T %A

General Information on: (a) the policies; and Labour Standards
Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws and 45 T % fI|
—REE regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BRAMIEE T M TH : () K
N(b) BTHETABERTZENIER
ERNMBOINE R -
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Description Reference Remark
#ut 2% Bt

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
BREREIER

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
EHEB4: % T %A

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards
REEN employment practices to avoid child 4 T %8|
5 EB4.1 and forced labour.

R BB S AR RET

&
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Labour Standards
BREN such practices when discovered. & T A8
£ EB4.2 HRAEZRRERBEARERE@ABR

FTEREREY 25 B8 -

OPERATING PRACTICES
EEE

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
fEEBS : /e E =2

General Policies on managing environmental Supply Chain
Disclosure and social risks of the supply chain. Management
—REE ERHEENREREERARERE - HERERE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain
BREN region. Management
E#B5.1 mibEE DA HEEEFHEE - fH e 2 B I8
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain
BEEN to engaging suppliers, number of Management
¥ #EB5.2 suppliers where the practices are HEEERE

being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

A EREREREANED  mEH
TEBESNHEEREE  UREH
BHHRITRERTIE
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Description

#

OPERATING PRACTICES
EEEN

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
EHEB6: EmEE

General Information on: (a) the policies; and

Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws and

—RIEE regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.
FHFMRETEERMRSHREREZ S
BE BRERLEBEENURBRIGE
B :(a) LR RO)BTHEITABE
AT ENEBEERRAONER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage to total products sold or

BEEN shipped subject to recalls for safety

£ B6.1 and health reasons.
EENCEXREmBH TR T HiE
REHMARKEBES L -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service

BEREN related complaints received how they

E1ZB6.2 are dealt with.
BEEENEmMRBORFEHENUR
JE¥ 7% »

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to

BREN observing and protecting intellectual

£ 1ZB6.3 property rights.
Ml EEERRENSREEGHENE
Il o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance

BREEN process and recall procedures.

{5 £ B6.4 HilEERTREEREREWEF
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Reference
8

Product

Responsibility

Emafl

N/A
NE A

N/A
~E A

Product
Responsibility
EmBFE

N/A
i B

There were no recalls
concerning the
provision.

I 48 75 B8 1 4 o 89 [B1 UL
=

There were no validated
complaints received
during the reporting
review period.
REEEEEEA - I &
ERECNKESHBED
o i

Recall procedures are
not relevant to our
operations.

] e 12 Fr B2 35 P9 9 &2 58
mE -



Description

#

OPERATING PRACTICES

&EES

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

EHEB6: EmEME

KPI B6.5
¥ 12B6.5

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.
HIUEEEENRERFLEBE - LA
RBEBARTRERG A -

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

BEB7: R&ES

General
Disclosure
—REE

KPI B7.1
BEEN
{5 EB7.1

KPI B7.2
BREN
E#EB7.2

Information on (a) the policies: and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that they have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAMIEHE PR HFERAERE
B @ BX: kb BTHEITARE
AZENHEBERENBROINEHR -

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcome of the cases.
RERMAHBFTAIHESREL
EEENESHLARGOEE MFR
RER o

Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.
et By #8045 b SR R A2 7 0 A M A R
MITRERFE -

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

Reference
8=z

Product
Responsibility
EmAafE

Anti-Corruption
k&S

Anti-Corruption
R&ES

Anti-Corruption
k&5

GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - LB RERWRE
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Description Reference
# B
COMMUNITY

#HE

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
EHEBS: HtERE

General Policies on community engagement Giving Back to the
Disclosure to understand the needs of the Community
—BEE communities where the issuer operates Bl £& 4t [&

and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BN EZ2ERTREEMEMR
FEMEREEB LIS ZEELER

Y EUR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Giving Back to the
BREN education, environmental concerns,  Community
5 1ZB8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).  [E & [&

BIERER(WHE RREE 4
THEKR- -2 Xt -85)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Giving Back to the
BREN time) to the focus area. Community
¥ B8.2 EEISHRBMHAER(MEERK EELR

) °
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) provision of
construction services and building materials supply, (i) sales
of agriculture-related products, and (iii) trading of clean coal
and others.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a business review and an indication of likely future
developments in the businesses of the Group, can be found
in the Chairman’s statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis as set out in this annual report. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES,
PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of Environmental Policies, performance and
compliance with laws and regulations are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this
annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognizes that employees, customers
and business partners are the keys to the sustainable
development of the Group is committed to building a close
and caring relationship with its employees and business
partners and improving the quality of services to the
customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The Group ensures all staff
is reasonably remunerated and regular training courses
are provided for its workers on different types of skills and
knowledge for their specific jobs in the workplace as well
as work safety. The Group strives to motivate its employees
with a clear career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skKills.

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

EFEWE

EZEeMAREREINFREEER
mAaMBEE -

TEXK
AARARERBRAR - EHEA

%%%Okfkﬁ%ﬁ&%?ﬁﬂff
(VHERERBRINEEBTZEREM -

XBEE
ZEXBNE-—TTREDT(BREAS
[ 9 5% 75 [ B8 B AN 5% 1B AT BE R PR 3 R 9
BERARAEREFERENEEREN B
EONHER - ZFTwRBRAESS
BEN—HD o

BEHEEX BURETFTEERS

Bl

BEERRBR
15

i o

BT RS IER KRB
BHIINAERRE HERER

HES FEFRHEBNEERR
3
EERAREE BFREBEHALE
EREZEROAE AEEBHREHR
BEREVBHIEOEIERRBIER
BARNERUTEFNBRBEE -

BRERARAKBESEREELRREER
BE - AEERRMAMEEIESEIES
MESEIHAEBIEEULMENTE
BUARERABANTHELZEZAE TR
HERBFIRE -AEEBHNANEBIR
TR ERERMZBEWHRBREBRR
BERABRE -
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The Group also stays connected with its customers
and suppliers and has ongoing communication with the
customers and suppliers through various channels such as
telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to obtain
their feedback and suggestions.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Reporting Period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

As the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on
8 June 2020 (Monday), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 3 June 2020 (Wednesday)
to 8 June 2020 (Monday) (both days inclusive) for the
said AGM or any adjournment thereof. All transfer of the
Company’s shares together with relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office no later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2020
(Tuesday) in order to qualify for the right to attend and vote
at the AGM (or any adjournment thereof). The share registrar
and transfer office is at:

Address: Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F

148 Electric Road, North Point

Hong Kong

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five financial years are set out in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 and details of the acquisition of subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 32 and 10 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December
2019 was 1,010,605,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements of the share capital and the share
premium of the Company during the Reporting Period are
set out in note 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group.
The remunerations of the Directors are determined with
reference to the economic situation, the market condition,
the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as
well as their individual performance.

RESERVES

Details of the reserve of the Group are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity in this annual
report.

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution, as calculated under the provision of
section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, and in accordance
with the Companies Law Cap. 22 of Cayman lIslands, was
approximately HK$44.7 million (2018: approximately HK$94.6
million) inclusive of share premium, share-based payment
reserve, special reserve and retained earnings/accumulated
losses.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEOWmE

B B 2 7]

AR EBHNBARR_-Z—LE+_A
EJF*EIEI’\JQM&E’Q\#&:‘:HEWHQ%W%
NAMHFBHIRAFRNG AT B RE
M 3532 %10 °

HHK&H“@“'E
E-AE+-A=+—08 X2aFE

B 1T B AN 42 81 A1,010,605,0000%8 & AX @

BE0.01B TH @A -

AARBRARBEOZRENRSHARANE
B BEHRNAF RO S MR KM
27528 o

EEHFMEE

FMZEae R AEE 2 %KX
MAEEMBEEERAREBABZH
ARBmMR L  EFHFHMOHICL2ELR
T - mh BSEEZ2BEBEBRERE
FMARBERETE -

(R
AEENFBABIARAERNEAE

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—H ERQFA
f%ﬁJ%?gB{w’ﬂlﬂzﬁ REBERASES
E B FE2E RN BAARR R A DR &Y
% 4 544,700,000 T(Z T —\F: 4
94, eoo oooi% L) BIERMDRE - AR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 2 August 2014 (the “Date
of Adoption”) are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. The Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing
on the Date of Adoption and shall expire at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the
tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated earlier by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide addional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), Directors, consultants,
advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents
customers, business partners and services providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-
time), Director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any
substantial shareholder of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
services provider of the Group, options to subscribe for
such number of shares of the Company as it may determine
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. The basis of
eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option shall
be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on
the basis of his contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2019, the number of outstanding
share options under the Scheme is 16,306,050 options,
representing 1.61% of the total issued Shares. The details
of movements in shares options under Scheme during the
Reporting Period are set out below:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FERHE

R-ZE—NAhE+-A=+—8 " %:t8=E
T R 1T B IR 2B 216,306,05017 ¢
HEEEETRMLD1.61% - RIFEHA
ZEEETHEREZHFBERINAT

Number of

share options
BREHER

W=F—NE—A—A

Outstanding shares option

as at 1 January 2019 M) R 17 {58 i AR 4 16,306,050
Granted during the year FAFET =
Exercised during the year FRNITHE =
Cancelled during the year FAEH -
Lapsed during the year FRKK .
Outstanding shares option RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—H

as at 31 December 2019 8 R 17 15 B AR R 16,306,050

The maximum number of entitlement to Shares of each
grantee under the Scheme (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of the issued Shares. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer
of the grant of the relevant options, there is no performance
target which must be achieved before any of the options can
be exercised.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
our Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

REFMT-—EAREAR  REZFEE
ERANRERD (BREETE FHE
HARITENBRE) BB T SEBEET
B An 48 B EN1% + 1E ] 8 1% 35 IR B 8
RERLARBGEMETR A AR RFTR
RHLE o

ERAAREZSUREBEINNE - K
BRIBEZTENERRITERRE  EF
AREIASEARLBEHER TF X%
XA BEATR I ESRR -
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of grant of the option.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Liu Yingjie (Note)
Ms. Zhou Jin

(appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. Zhu Zhou

(resigned on 28 June 2019)
Ms. Jiao Fei

(resigned on 12 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Cao Hongmin

(appointed on 22 January 2019)
Mr. Chan Chi Pan

(appointed on 19 July 2019)
Mr. Li Kar Fai Peter

(appointed on 19 July 2019)
Mr. Liu Yang

(resigned on 22 January 2019)
Mr. Chan Kam Wah

(resigned on 5 June 2019)

Note:

Mr. Liu Yingjie was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 19
September 2018 and re-designated as executive Director and chairman of
the Board on 28 June 2019.
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The incumbent Directors’ biographical details are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

Information regarding directors’ emoluments is set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules has
been received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation. All
Directors of the Company were appointed for a period from
one to three years and subject to retirement from office and
re-election at the AGM of the Company in accordance with
the Articles.

Each of the executive Directors shall also be entitled to
discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board based
on, among other things, the performance of the individual
directors and the overall financial position of the Group,
and is subject to the recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company
and its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2019, interests or short positions
of the Directors, chief executives of the Company in
the shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required (i)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or (i) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
(i) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

() Long Position in the Shares and underlying
Shares

Number of Shares and

A.

EERFETHAERALT
REMBEZER®D  MHBRAO
REEENEZERAR

R-ZZE-NE+-A=+—8 &2
AEEHAETETHRABEREARA K
HRE 2B (TR REB XM FE571
ERHFLPEKRA(EERPERK
Bl EXVER) KRR 5 (R 48]) - 487
BROLEEZFFEBONRBEESRR
HEKROIEXVEETRSD B EHNE
AR KRB EZRAR (B
BEEFFLPERIBEBABKBXKRSE
WEEIREREENERZRKXE) -
gk (i) 1B 15 3% % & HA & & 1 35215
ERRZEA TR E SRR
KB ()R IEGEM LR RIS 5.46
E567R A M e AR A KR T
BmRARBWT:

iy MHEOEEEROGHTE

Approximate

Capacity/ underlying Shares percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest held/interested in shareholding
s/ BERGEN
BRREB 5%/ & BROKRHEBRGEE BRBERES L
Zhou Jin Beneficial owner 284,500,000 28.15%
Zhou Jin ERERAA
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(i) Interests in debentures of the Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

Name of Capacity/ Type/Class of Amount of Bonds
Chief Executive Nature of interest debentures held/interest in

s BAEEED
TETHABHRS 5 EEME BEREZBER BR BHEH
Lai Xiaoliang Beneficial owner Fixed rate bond (Note) HK$5,800,000
MR ERERAA Bl MEEH (B it) 5,800,000/ 7T

Note: the fixed rate bonds are freely transferrable and not
convertible to the Shares of the Company

(i) Short Position
As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
or the chief executive nor their associates had
any short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2019
and so far as is known to the Directors, no person
other than certain Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be recorded in the register of
substantial Shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of
the Group.

Kret: ZEEMNEEZFATEHEE
LR §:%: EAVNCIE §h)

(i) %
M-T—hE+-A=+—0
BMEEEXTFBTRABNR
WM B ARKATREEM
REOE MR - R
BEEBREATMAE -

mp
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Number of Shares and
underlying Shares

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Shareholder  Capacity/Nature held/interested in shareholding
e/ REESHN

BRREB 5/ HE BROREARGEHAE BOBERED T
Huang Cheng Beneficial owner 188,620,000 18.66%
B ERBEEA

Zhu Zhou Beneficial owner 129,000,000 12.76%
KM EnEEA

MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEF

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 37.6% (2018:
approximately 47.8%) of the total revenue of the Group
and the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 21.3% (2018: approximately 15.6%) of the total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 63% (2018:
approximately 35.6%) of the total purchases of the Group
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 24% (2018: approximately 10.9%) of the total
purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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MAJOR SUBCONTRACTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 87% (2018:
approximately 70.6%) of the total subcontracting of the
Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group accounted
for approximately 33% (2018: approximately 20.0%) of the
total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest subcontractors.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interests directly or indirectly
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions of the
Group are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuity connected
transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
and are fully exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all of them
have confirmed that neither themselves nor their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had held any position or had interest in any businesses
or companies that were or might be competing with the
business of the Group, or gave rise to any concern regarding
conflict of interests during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code
except for the deviations from code provision A.2.1 of the
Code which is explained in the section headed “Compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code” of the Corporate
Governance Report.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the required standards of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors in respect of the shares of the Company (the
“Code of Conduct”). Having made specific enquiries with
the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Code of
Conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the Reporting Period. The Company has taken out and
maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of important events affecting the Group after the end
of the Reporting Period are set out in the paragraph headed
“Events after the Reporting Period” in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on
information that is publicly available to the Company, at least
25% of the Company'’s issued share capital were held by the
public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”)
was the auditor of the Company, which shall retire in
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer itself for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Yingjie

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT | Y&~/ A% &S
AUDITOR’S REPORT

g

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

Glory Flame Holdings Limited

HEERERAA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 102 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of trade and other receivables
for recoverability. This recoverability review is significant to
our audit because the balance of trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$76,706,000 as at 31 December 2019 is
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s recoverability review involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit
limits and credit periods to customers and debtors;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers and debtors;

- Evaluating the Group’s recoverability assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers and
debtors;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the customers
and debtors; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s recoverability review for trade
and other receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA’'s website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05988

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF | #r &4
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER | E 2 mEUW AR
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | ##=% ¥ T=A=T—ALsR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FAT
Revenue PN 6 93,341 133,631
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (66,237) (105,088)
Gross profit £ F 27,104 28,543
Interest revenue A B U A 63 7
Other income and other gains or ~ E i g A K B th Uy 25 5k
losses &5 18 7 (1,412) 595
Loss on investments at fair value  Z A FEFABZE &
through profit or loss BEE - (35,651)
Share-based payments AR D B EERN R - (20,798)
Impairment losses on various FXEEERRAEEIE
assets (21,789) (104,302)
Administrative and other operating 17 I H b &8 &2
expenses (47,826) (64,811)
Operating loss EEER (43,860) (196,417)
Finance costs B & A 9 (4,026) (3,000)
Loss before income tax RIS HATEE (47,886) (199,417)
Income tax Frig %t 11 (400) (164)
Loss for the year FABA 12 (48,286) (199,581)
Other comprehensive loss: Hth2HEEE:
Item that may be reclassified to HEEFIA 18 7 7Y
profit or loss: IgH
Exchange differences on translating # &5 5h & 18 1)
foreign operations [ (992) (3,220)
Total other comprehensive FRAHME2EBERLRE
loss for the year (992) (3,220)
Total comprehensive loss for FRE2EEBEEE
the year (49,278) (202,801)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEmEMEEIRAK
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-AF+-_A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Loss for the year DTATELEFANER:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIE =N (44,411) (194,804)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A = (3,875) @4,777)
(48,286) (199,581)
Total comprehensive loss for U TATEEER
the year attributable to: ZHEER:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIET SN (45,035) (198,507)
Non-controlling interests AR (4,243) (4,294)
(49,278) (202,801)
Loss per share BRER 15
Basic (HK cents per share) HEAR(TRABMWED) (4.39) (19.93)
Diluted (HK cents per share) B (R ABIED (4.39) (19.93)
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2019

AR e IR

—ZT-NAE+=-A=+—8

2019 2018
—E—hE —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E Y ] 16 15,490 16,529
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 12,753 -
Goodwill EES 18 938 2,877
Intangible assets mEEE 19 - -
29,181 19,406
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 2,359 6,048
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e U 3k 18 21 76,706 65,727
Bank and cash balances RITRIE ® & 22 30,492 39,169
109,557 110,944
Disposal group classified as held NERBIEFLEEZ
for sale & 48 R - 31,128
109,557 142,072
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E At JE T 5B 23 13,640 17,064
Borrowings B 24 45,800 40,000
Lease liabilities HEARE 25 4,607 -
Amount due to a director R —REEZHIE 26 10,450 -
Tax payable FE < %1 18 156 232
74,653 57,296
Liabilities directly associated with EROBEABERSE
disposal group classified as held EZHEHETR B
for sale ZB8fE - 13
74,653 57,309
Net current assets REBEEFE 34,904 84,763
Total assets less current HMEERRBAERS
liabilities 64,085 104,169
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

At 31 December 2019

RZZE-NAE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 25 8,813 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE 27 433 33
9,246 33
NET ASSETS EER®E 54,839 104,136
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital fi& 7 28 10,106 10,106
Reserves ke 49,056 94,091
Equity attributable to owners of the AR FIHEHB A
Company FEAL #E 59,162 104,197
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE A (4,323) 61)
TOTAL EQUITY 48 = 54,839 104,136

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 175 F102ZE175B Z KW EMERER ==
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of ZHZA-+tHEEZESe £ NEE
Directors on 27 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:  F|% W T EERAKEE:

Liu Yingjie Zhou Jin
Bl
Director Director
EF EF
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_

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

= A

N

A4 =
/\El

FE)x

Eﬁiif h¢+_ﬁl_+ HIEFE

Share
capital

S
HK§'000
TERL

Share
premium

iy
HK§'000

Attributable to owners of the Company
KLRERARE

Foreign

Merger
reserve

i L]
HK$'000

Share-based  currency

payment  translation
reserve
HR& XA
RELRE NERERR
HK§000  HKS'000

?%:[ $§:

reserve

Other Accumulated

reserve

Bk
HK§ 000

i1

losses

2ithg
HK§ 000

3 =
Bl

Total

it
HKS1000

TEL

Non-
controlling
interests

#ERER
HKS000

TEL

Total equity

L
HK$1000

TEL

Balance at 1 January 2018 Hog-N5-A-AHEY o M2 50 10707 (8 @AY 2406 00 24136
Total comprehensive loss for theyear M2 AFBLE - - - - (3708) - (194804 {98,507) [62ss  (02801)
Acquistion of a subsidiary hENEL - - - - - - - - 5,163 5,153
Issue of shares on placement HEEFARRA 809 3,831 - - - - - 30,640 - 30,640
Share-based payments WRhBEEZRR - - - 20,798 - - - 20798 - 20798
Capitalinction fomnon-controling ¥ EHER LS
interests - - - - - - - - - -
Cancelation of share optons ERETH - - - (64 - - 2,741 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 HZE-NETZA=t-A
fis 10,106 268,953 15,800 4764 (3,289) (1,672) (190,465 104,197 (61) 104,136
Balance at 1 January 2019 HoE-nE-A-AEH 10106 26698 15800 4760 (328 (167) (190465 104107 6) 10413
Total comprehensive loss for the year im%@@iﬁ 4g - - - - (624) - (M) (450%) (4243 (40,219)
Disposal of subsiciaries HEHED - - - - - - - - (219) (219)
Captel njection fomnon-controling AR ER ﬁ i
interests - - - - - - - - 200 200
Balance at 31 December 2019 HoE-nETZAZ1-8
fEH 10,106 268,953 15,800 4764 (3913) (1,672)  (234,876) 59,162 (4,323) 54,839
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

A NN -1
%/ =] E/Eui//lbi
BE-—T—AFEt-A=t—RAIEE

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF T —-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating KRETEMEBSRSE
activities 2
Loss before income tax b BT 15 75 A1 /E5 18 (47,886) (199,417)
Adjustments for: AT A2
Depreciation of property, plant and  #% - BB R R &
equipment E 7,460 8,652
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  # AEEEINE 6,092 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BEELEAE - 1,470
Interest income A B A (63) (7)
Loss on investments at fair value BATEFABRZ
through profit or loss KEEE - 35,651
Reversal of impairment loss on BOE Sk EMER
trade and other receivables RIBEZBEEE (222) (93)
Loss on disposal of property, plant H&E®WE « WE MK
and equipment HEE 11 193
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LEWNB AR EE 2,075 -
Share-based payments LARR 1D B E & 2 AR - 20,798
Wavier of trade payables RNEeEPEMNERR (589) -
Written-off of property, plant and M~ R &R E
equipment izl 114 835
Written-off of inventories 7 & # 8H 904 -
Impairment losses on various BEEEMREBE
assets 21,789 104,302
Interest expenses A BFRX 4,026 3,000
Operating loss before working 2 EZE B BaiLeE
capital changes BB (6,289) (24,616)
Change in inventories FEIEAE 2,738 (1,430)
Change in trade and other B 5 K& H th fE R IE
receivables R (33,357) (5,279)
Change in investments at fair value R A FEFAEZF
through profit or loss I E LR - 15,379
Change in trade and other payables & 5 & H b f& 1~ Z 18
R (2,792) (847)
Net cash used in operations KEEBFTAD
RE F5E (39,700) (16,793)
Lease interest paid ENEERE (801) -
Income tax (paid)/refund (B BEER (79) 612
Net cash used in operating RETHFTANES
activities T H (40,580) (16,181)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,‘/T\ Iﬁﬂimni%

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

2019
ZE-hF

HK$’000

FERT

2018
—\F
HK$’000
TAET

Cash flows from investing RETHMB

activities RERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BER

equipment B (6,663) (8,631)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE HE &

plant and equipment B LE0kzil TE' IR 12 877
Acquisition of a subsidiary @Al EERN = (8,410
Proceeds from disposal of o T B /&ET # P15

subsidiaries FRIE 10 30,736 -
Net interest received B F B R 63 7
Net cash generated from/ REZBES (FA)

(used in) investing activities HEeFHE 24,148 (16,157)
Cash flows from financing MEEHE

activities RERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares 1T ERH TS

on placement FRIE S8 - 39,640
Repayment of lease liabilities 1; EHERE (5,421) -
Proceeds from issue of bonds *ITESFBFTE A 5,800 -
Capital injection from non- 3?? IR 2 A

controlling interests 200 -
Advance from a director —% %% R BN 10,450 -
Interest paid on other loan EMERENFE (3,000) (3,000)
Net cash generated from METBHELERS

financing activities b=t 8,029 36,640
Net (decrease)/increase in ReRESEEYN

cash and cash equivalents FEOR D), % (8,403) 4,302
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEREE Bz B

changes (278) (132)
Cash and cash equivalents at F¥HEE K

beginning of the year REeEEY 39,173 35,003
Cash and cash equivalents RTINS E8H 2

at end of reporting period, PN BEHARZ

Represented by bank and ReELBEEFED

cash balances 30,492 39,173
Analysis of cash and cash ReRBELEEY

equivalents 23
Bank and cash balances SRIT MR 1T 45 4 30,492 39,169
Bank and cash balances included FADEAIFELS

in disposal group classified as ZMEHABARTT

held for sale RRITH & - 4

30,492 39,173

108 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEiZRER AT



NOTES TO THE | 454 BAT&R M=
CONSOLIDATED | ®#==% n&t=A=+"HR1LFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION

Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 April 2014
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Suite 3513, 35th Floor, Tower
6, the Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company‘s shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2019. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group‘s accounting policies, presentation of the
Group‘s consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years except as
stated below.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group was initially applied HKFRS 16 “Leases” with
effect from 1 January 2019 and has taken transitional
provisions and methods not to restate comparative
information for prior period.

—RER
FHHEZERAERARTERATNR =
E-—NFEFNUNA-THHEBERSE
ERAEEREHSIMK LR E
BHEBRAR  c ARRIMEMtE
B2 i 1A Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman lIslands ° &K A & & &
FEEFEWHAVREENELSHE
BB B KB F6E35E3513E °
ARRIBRODARBEEBERIFAER
NAE((BERATDBIZEMR T o

ARAE—EREERAR - HH
BRAIZEZEXKHINNRNGEHH
WERMTFEST o

RAFAIREBITERMHE
ﬁd:‘}ﬁ ElJ

A = A

RERN ARECRAE L GFAED
~E((EREFMAT]) EMEME
H2EMHBE YR_F—-NLF—A
—HEMFEREMNMA TR
RETEEVBREEN(EBY
BREEND - BEYHREER
BREBVHEREEAN(EBUE
BEEAND FESTENIER
EREMDERE -BRUATHAE
S RNZEFRI R EETEEY
BREENL BEHAREBRAEF
BERBEFENEGAHR A5E
HEMBBRR 22T AMMEZR
TRORERED -

BV B HREEAE1655HE
g
AEEEB-_T-NLEF—-HA-BER
RERBEMHHRELERIF1657H
B YERBBEMEERXEITED
BEIAEHRAZLBER -
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NCWESTOTHECQNSOLEMTH)HNANCMLSWHEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases
which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under HKAS 17 “Leases”, resulted in changes
in the consolidated amounts reported in the financial
statements as follows:

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

At 1 January 2019:

2.

Increase in right-of-use assets £ AEEEE M
Increase in lease liabilities HEBEEI

The operating lease commitments disclosed as at
31 December 2018 were HK$19,965,000, while the
lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 were
HK$17,570,000, of which HK$5,223,000 were current
lease liabilities and HK$12,347,000 were non-current
lease liabilities.

The differences between the operating lease
commitments discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate of 5125% and the total lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 comprised the exclusion of short-term leases
recognised on a straight-line basis as expenses.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.
The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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R REBITERMBE

HEER (&)
BFREMBHREENF1655 HE
(%)

R E BB T R R B1658 1% -
A E BB TR E S GRS
RG] S BAEEAE] 2 AE
RREAMAERAEARL 18
BB BHRENSH L G2 B
M

RERNGEVBRRAEB TR
SRTBREINWT -

1 January
2019
ZE-NF

HK$'000
FET

RZE—NF—H—H:

17,570
17,570

R-ZZE—-NE+-_A=1+—HEE
2 0 & & ¥E 519,965,000
TR =ZZE—hFEF—A—HER
2 & A& & A17,570,000/ T 0 H
75,223,000 T AR B HEAE
12,347,000 T RIEREBEEEE -

BR A A& E A BV IR 3E 8 XM R5.125%
FHROKEHEREEARYTERA
BB ®REERFI65 A LK
EMBRARTHEINEERER
BeHENERBREIRRERLE
RABAXNENEE -

ZNER B 1 R PR A B AR AR B R R A R
ZHETRBER] BB B E R
REBCEFHGHZFHT LEE
REAMBREENZZE AR
BEREXSHNAIREETERRM
BHREEARTEHELEXER
MBERRELEEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments at fair
value through profit or loss which is carried at its fair
values. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires the
directors to exercise its judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

3.

fRE G MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=1+—HILEE

TEEEE
G EMBHRRIDBRBEETE G
NERMCNEEMHREEL &
B RRE AR A R P A AR
EHEEMARYREFERRGIRE
MBI ERE -

KR e M B MR IIARIBE L ANE
Plamst  HEIXARAREBELDEEGBRF
BEIRR - NEAMBRRIIAETT
(TBRTD2% BBREBIHI M
BHEENEAAZREAIN T
2 -

RENTEBEBUBREEANES
MR FTEERAE THRER

BE - -ENFREEEERMA S
BERBREFPIELHE - PRI A M
H T B0 88 0 DA S0 K B AR A B RS 3R
TREBEARKMGENGE - £H
AR

MBNGEVBRRAEAZER
SETBEREINWT -

—AN

wh 9
HRAVERREEARARENE
ANREE+-_A=+—BHILZ20H%
HBE - -MWBAREAEBHEHEEZES
BZER BEAKEAILEERZR
HERMABAZMO®R  BEKE
FREHER RO EZSOR
B BAIAEETEHZERE 4%
BeREENDETHEBENELEEH
¥ BIABFEEEOR XK

ZRENE  AIXRNEEUZEREAR
#7 -
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NOTESTOTHECQNSOLEMTH)HNANCMLSWﬂEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The
method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill
is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are
not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of
impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z-NEF+-_A=1+—HIEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. xEgstEE (&)

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation

(1)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre I RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=1+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TE S5t EXE (&)

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

- Plant and machinery 1 25%
- Furniture and fixtures 1 20%
- Motor vehicles 1 25%
- Decoration 1 20%
- Office equipment 1 20%-25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets
is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Land and buildings

- Offices 5%-50%
-  Warehouse : 50%
- Employee accomodation : 20%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs
and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-
first-out method. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure,
and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost; and

— Investments at fair value through profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. xEgstEE (&)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this
category if they do not meet the conditions
to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income unless the
Group designates an equity investment that is
not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of
any interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit
losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if
the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on
a financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected
credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

==

(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or
service exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted
for the effect of a significant financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

Other revenue
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. xEgstEE (&)

(Continued)
Employee benefits

(1)

(i

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTESWDTHECONSOUDATH)HNANCMLSDMEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of
the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the
Group receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. xEgstEE (&)

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group‘’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group‘s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or not yet available for use are reviewed annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible
assets except goodwill, inventories and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(@ Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which
such estimate has been changed. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(0)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the present value
of estimated future cash flows. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected or there are
unfavourable events and change in facts and
circumstance which result in revision of future
estimate cash flows, a material impairment loss
may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank
balances and trade and other receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

B EREREGE)

(b) 15 & E & (&)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in MEFHRERBRERKRET
the event that counterparties fail to perform their HEHERNOCERATREENT

obligations at the end of the reporting period F - AREBZHAKEZERRETS
in relation to each class of recognised financial AR R ZE ﬁ?
assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as MEEE AEBZEZERKB
stated in the consolidated statement of financial IEXQT%&%@EH& NIH o
position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily EEE/UMEE CEEB - EETe
attributable to its trade and other receivables. i&%/ﬁﬂ;ﬁ*ﬁ;—}%1 BB 5
In order to minimise credit risk, the Directors

, o F&“H&%IEE’JTH&@/E%E VA B
review the recoverable amount of each individual 2 TﬁTTHﬁZ@ % I8 r-‘]r—“‘ o)
e e e s AR AR A

EEHEY 5

receivable. In this regard, the Directors consider REMERRBREXER ﬁ
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group considers whether there has been a AEEHReMEERRER
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets HZzEARRERIGERB
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting BrEANRRE  UAFTEemE
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring EZEZERBAELTRNEREH
as at the reporting date with the risk of default R 327 25 45 L E A Mg 18 ) o AN &=

as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following

EAEEMGAEREREY
B2AIBER o REEAT
5114 R

information is used:

. L — REEEFR:
- internal credit rating;
— INBEEFREA)
- external credit rating (if available); s R(mA)
- actual or expected significant adverse - BHEBEFETARMER

HEBREREH 2 5 -
MBREBEARN 2 BRX

changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a

significant change to the borrower’s ability to FEHE R A EE
meet its obligations;
— actual or expected significant changes in the — ERAREHEEZE TR

operating results of the borrower; JEHRE K& E)

-  significant increases in credit risk on other — R—EZAZHMESE T
financial instruments of the same borrower; BEVEERKBEZHM:
and %

- significant changes in the expected — BRAEHRBARTAZ
performance and behaviour of the borrower, EREE BEERAZ
including changes in the payment status of AR AEE o

borrowers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group. The Group normally categorises a
loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments greater than 360
days past due. Where loans or receivables have
been written off, the Group, if practicable and
economical, continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group's financial
liabilities is as follow:

At 31 December 2019 R=-F-NE+=-A=1+-—-H

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NFT-A=t-BLEE

5. BmEkEE®Z(E)
(b) EE AR (E)

(c)

Carrying undiscounted
amounts

fREE
HK$’000
FTER

WEREHNR 2B BB
B30A ' AR EEERKR AR
BN BEXRFGHFEZEIREL
3% B HA RS 608 A X I
AlemEEHIRED -

eRMEERABREEEKD
(Bl 4 2 5 48 5K B2 7K 5% [ 3 X
B RET B B M - HEBA
7 %8 HA 18360 H R BE B 17 & 4
N AEEBRESMEEH
ERE B RIE - B R E
WrEME AAKREEER
BRATTRMG A EBER S 2BERT)
HEFRDCRG TE S E WK E 2
HifE W SRR o

B R B

AEEZBRRRERERBA
LERRDELHTE IR
HegmenRefE BHH
RHEBRAZAHESHEFR -

rEECRHEBEZIBBERY
Wran T

Total
Within 1 year
or on demand
1ERH
HK$’000
THERT

cash flow
KRERRE
REHE
HK$’000
THERT

Trade and other payables B R EMEMNRIE 13,640 13,640 13,640

Amount due to a director E—REERE 10,450 10,450 10,450

Borrowings BE 45,800 49,322 49,322
69,890 73,412 73,412

At 31 December 2018 R-Z-NF+=-A=+-—-H

Trade and other payables B 5 K H A0 K IE 17,064 17,064 17,064

Borrowings BE 40,000 43,000 43,000
57,064 60,064 60,064
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk
As the Group‘s other loan bear interests at fixed
interest rates, therefore the Group's operating cash
flows are substantially independent of change in
market interest rate.

(e) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

(f) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December

B EREREGE)

(d) =@k
HRAEEGEESEFRIRE
EMERFE  BAKEEER
EREBIRTIGHERNEE

(e) 2¥E
REEETBRRAKRAIRBRAE
BremEEReRABELE
AEEFTESECAFERS -

(f) At=B=+—Hz%®
TEEH

2019 2018
—2-hnEFE —FT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Financial assets: tREE:
Financial assets at amortised 1Z#HEK A EN S ME E
cost (including cash and (BiEReMREEEY)
cash equivalents) 105,493 95,401
Financial liabilities: TRAE:
Financial liabilities at REHK AT ED
amortised cost: EEMAE:
Trade and other payables B 5 & B Ath JE T IR 13,640 17,064
Borrowings BE 45,800 40,000
Amount due to a director BN —RESEHA 10,450 -
69,890 57,064
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is analysed as follows:

6. WA
REEZ AT :

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF T —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Provision of concrete demolition REBEIFHEBEETIE
and construction engineering Hlﬁ%
services 61,289 83,803
Manufacturing and trading BENEERRATBERERE
of prefabricated precast RS
construction 29,413 4,510
Trading of LED Cultivation Cabinet B BLED £ REEEE X5 - 878
Trading of clean coal EEFERK 1,055 38,206
Trading of air conditoners BEE T - 5,681
Provision of insurance brokerage &R B 48 42 K& 7% 78 R 7%
and consultancy services 1,584 553
93,341 133,631

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

REEBZzEFPEHWADFTWMT :

customers:
Segments 2019 o —E-NF
Agricultural Trading Financial
Construction equipment business services
g% BERf ER%% SREH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn ThR ThR TR TR
Timing of revenue recognition WARZEE
At a point in time E-BEY 29,413 - 1,055 1,584 32,052
Over time REGHMED 61,289 - - - 61,289
90,702 - 1,055 1,584 93,341
Segments 2018 7 EB e —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Timing of revenue recognition BARZKE
At a point in fime E-BEY - 478 43,887 553 45,318
Over time RERBNER 88,313 - - - 88,313
88,313 878 43,887 563 133,631
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

REVENUE (Continued)

Construction service fee income

The Group provides construction service to the
customers. When the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligations of a
construction contract can be measured reasonably,
revenue from the contract and the contract costs are
recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to the estimated total contract
costs for the contract. This method provides the most
reliable estimate of the percentage of completion.

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligations of a construction contract
cannot be measured reasonably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that is
expected to be recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group
according to the payment schedules as stipulated in
the contracts. If the service rendered by the Group
exceeds the payments, a contract asset is recognised.
If the payments exceed the service rendered, a contract
liability is recognised.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the performance obligations. The stand-alone
selling prices are determined by applying the expected
cost plus a margin approach.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
RE-F-NE+-A=+—ALEE

REVENUE (Continued) 6. WA(E)
Trading =
The Group sells clean coal to the customers through its K& HESXEBRMEPHE

trading business. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products and the customer has obtained legal
titles to the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit
terms of 45 days. For new customers, deposits or cash
on delivery may be required. Deposits received are
recognised as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are

BB . ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\\EDDmTI%M¥5$v
BEAEREXNTER)  LEABE
FERFPEMNERNARTEER
EPFRSEMMETCEERER -

AEFPHHE - RERISBEE -
HMEPAAXNBEINRNER
RARENK  EUBMIREHER R
BHAR-

EEMXNTERE LB

delivered to the customers as this is the point in time A - B DA U R R E (BB
that the consideration is unconditional because only the KA BRI BR A1) - {F ) B 5B B UK
passage of time is required before the payment is due. I8 -

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 7. EttWAREMER

OR LOSSES

2019 2018

—E-NE —E—)\F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Dividend income & B WA - 322
Reversal of impairment losses on  BEEIE 5 M b EW K TE ~

trade and other receivables BE E B 222 93

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain EH (B8 Wam FE (51) 70
Loss on disposals of property, plant &9 ¥ - BE & REEIE

and equipment (11) (193)

Written off of inventory 7 & i 8 (904) -

Loss on disposals of subsidiaries &M & A 7 &8 (2,075) -

Wavier of trade payables REeEPEMNERER 589 -

Others Hh, 818 303

(1,412) 595

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE

TE-NAFT A=+ -RALEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

The Group has four (2018: four) reportable segments as
follows:

Construction

/'\ﬁl&ﬁﬂ
REBEMKA(Z
WHEBWAT -

—N\F:HOR)AZ2

Provision of concrete demolition and construction engineering

services; construction works, and manufacturing and
trading of prefabricated precast construction

==
KEATARZEE

Agricultural equipment

BERME

Trading business
BEHEB BEEBRRKNHEAM

Financial services
® &R P AR b A8 42 K7k
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as those described in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include interest revenue, income tax,
gains or losses from investments and other unallocated
corporate income and expenses. Segment assets
do not include bank and cash balance and other
unallocated corporate assets. Segment liabilities do not
include other loan, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated corporate liabilities.

The segment of financial services were ceased from
operation during the current year.
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Trading of Ecological LED Cultivation Cabinet System
BEERRLED A BHEERSR

Trading of clean coal and others

Provision of insurance brokerage and consultancy services

7 Bk %5

REEBZAEHHBIIRHETRE
mERB 2 EEEREM AKX
BEBERTRAFMETSHERER
BEMEBEIR -

A2 R EE D B S 5T B AR
BB MR EIAANER - D
%BTEET\@%E%'JE&IQJ\‘Fﬂ%ﬁé‘
BRERGEREMRDERTRAR
FX e ’“*Bﬁ??@%fﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁ
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ELEHBRERREMARDERRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre I RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER(E)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, ﬁ A ERoMEm - EENREE
assets and liabilities: ZERWET:

Agricultural Financial

Construction equipment
B BXRE
HK$'000

Trading

business
EREH
HK$'000

services Total
SRRH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000
ThR ThR ThR THR ThR

Year ended 31 December 2019: BE-E-NET-A=t-RLEE:

Revenue from external customers RENSEEHRA 90,702 - 1,055 1,584 93,341
Segrent loss SHER (1,515) 2,170) (7,014) (14,156) (21,855
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment n% BEREENE 3,459 - 1,445 - 4,904
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FEREENE 1,253 - - - 1,253
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net BARNF B RERSR %%’E 508 1,142 3,509 - 5,159
Impairment loss on other receivables, net - m EUSERESE % - 73 - 10,663 10,736

ANREREAREE EE‘& B é%ﬁ

Impairment loss on prepayments and trade

deposits, net 4,505 - - - 4,505
Additions to segment non-current assets RENDERDEE 6,660 - - - 6,660
At 31 December 2019: RoE-AE+-A=t-H:

Segment assets HHEE 91,081 83 5,088 83 96,335
Segment liabilities AH&E 16,795 - 1,602 - 18,397

Year ended 31 December 2018: BE-E-NEtZB=T-HLEE:

Revenue from external customers RENMBEPHIA 88,313 878 43,887 553 133,631
Segment loss HHER (5,987) (56,842) (51,125 (1,207) (115,161)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment n% BEREENE 3,457 4,093 - - 7,550
Amortisation of intangible assets BREpEE - 1470 - - 1470

BARRAEZAERR 38

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables,

net 1,002 - 45,670 - 46,672
Impairment loss on prepayments and trade BRFERESREAEER

deposits 9,850 40,718 - - 50,568
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #1% - BERREHERA - 4,122 - - 4122
Impairment loss on intangible assets ENEEREER - 2,040 - - 2,040
Additions o segment non-current assets REABERDEE 3,183 7 4,495 - 8,455
At 31 December 2018: RZB-NE+ZA=1-B:
Segment assets HHEE 48,741 3,099 15,556 10,089 78,385
Segment liabilties PHER 7223 112 4572 209 12,116
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

N

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

]

o EER (&)
E

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, AEHoHEE BEERAEBEZYH
assets and liabilities:

iR -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Profit or loss: B
Total profit or loss of reportable AEmMoEERBEHE
segments (21,855) (115,161)
Share-based payments AR B E 2 2K - (20,798)
Loss on investments at fair value A FEFABZZEEE
through profit or loss B - (35,651)
Corporate and unallocated REl kAN BELE &=
profit or loss (26,031) (27,807)
Consolidated profit or loss BRIAIREER
before tax (47,886) (199,417)
Assets: BE:
Total assets of reportable segments 7] £ # 9 58 & & 2% 96,335 78,385
Bank and cash balances RITRIBITE S 30,492 39,169
Disposal group classified as held D EAFBIEFHEZ
for sale & 48 R - 31,128
Corporate and unallocated assets A& & &9 B & E 11,911 12,796
Consolidated total assets HAEEERTE 138,738 161,478
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable AE2|oaBERE
segments 18,397 12,116
Borrowings EE 45,800 40,000
Liabilities directly associated with HEEDBEABFIEFHEZ
disposal group classified as held HESEEEHE - ABE
for sale - 13
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE 433 33
Corporate and unallocated liabilites R A R IED R EE 19,269 5,180
Consolidated total liabilities meaERs 83,899 57,342
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information:

AN
IQ\W\D

B 75 R B ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

8. 7 HEM (M)

o[ K

2019 2018

—E-hE —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHE T FAET

Revenue: WA

Hong Kong BB 62,873 84,285
The People's Republic of China AR AR 30,468 49,346
93,341 133,631
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is FEHRMWEEER M S » WA TIREF

based on the locations of the customers.

ML E 25 e

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FE T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Hong Kong B 13,556 8,474
The People‘s Republic of China PEARAM 15,625 10,932
29,181 19,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about revenue from the Group‘s customer
individually contributing over 10% of total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

Customer A# — Construction
business segment

BPEAM — BREEK

7 8B

8.

7 & & B ()
5 B {8 B A 7 5 8 48 4 A 35 5E10%
AEEBZEPERMT

2019
—E-NE

2018

— )\
HK$’000
TAET

HK$’000
FTRERT

19,877 -

- 20,857

Customer B* — Trading business &FB* — EZ %% 5D
segment
# Customer A did not contribute over 10% of the Goup's revenue

for the year ended 31 December 2018, the figure shown was
for comparative purpose only.

* Customer B did not contribute over 10% of the Goup's revenue

for the year ended 31 December 2019, the figure shown was
for comparative purpose only.

9. FINANCE COSTS

9.

# BEFARBE-ZT-—NF+-A=+—
BEFEY SRS EK AR RKI0%
AEEB PRREFERLE -

* EFBREEZE-_T-NF+-_A=+—
EIJJ:?FI?%&%$‘$I§W)\&X10%
AEEB MRREFEHLER -

B & B AR

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—)\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNS 801 -
Interest on other loan HEaERF B 3,000 3,000
Interest on bond payables &5 AR IE B2 225 -
4,026 3,000
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10. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019

On 19 January 2019, the Group have completed the
disposal of Hong Kong Xincheng Hi-Tech Co. Limited
(the “HK Xincheng”), being a wholly-owned subsidiary
to an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$3,000 (the “HK Xincheng Disposal’). The
disposal was completed during the current year.

HK Xincheng was dormant.

On 13 March 2018, the Group had entered into
disposal agreement with an independent third party,
in which the Group would dispose 25,500 shares (the
“Mansion Point Disposal”’) among 50,000 ordinary
shares, being the entire shares owned by the Group,
in issue of Mansion Point Internation Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Mansion
Point Group”) at a total cash consideration of
HK$30,755,000. The disposal was completed during
the current year.

Mansion Point Group was principally engaged in
investment holding.

On 28 November 2019, the Group had entered into
disposal agreement with independent third party, in
which the Group would dispose 2,370,000 shares (the
“Yuanfeng Disposal”’) among 3,950,000 ordinary
shares, being the entire shares owned by the Group,
in issue of Hong Kong Yuanfeng Insurance Brokers
Limited (the “Yuanfeng”) at a total consideration of
HK$122,422. The disposal was completed during the
current year.

Yuanfeng was principally engaged in provision of
insurance brokerage and consultancy services.

RA M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=1+—HILEE

10. HEHE AT
BE-B-AE+=A=+-
s

RZZF-NAF-A+ILE A&EEZ
}ﬂzﬁ RBUE=-THEZEWE
RAEBEASHMERBERARATE
BEHED RE A ER30008 T
([BEEGEHEESEH) HEFHE
ERAFERTK °

BEEERLEETRRE -

R—_E—NFE=ZA+=H A5 H
B 2B I E=FI L HEmR:S
% It - N & B B & Mansion Point
Internation Limited & £ M B A 7 (47
f8[Mansion Point £ [ ])50,000
AR 22 1T R AR B F125,500/% (BP A
SEHEBE2EE Hx %) (TMansion
PointHEFEH)) LHERKER
30,755,0007% JT ° H % E AV
FEANTK -

Mansion PointE Bl ZR F R &
A% o

R-ZZT-—NF+—A=+N\H &
BE—-ZBITE=FFILHEWRZE
Bt AEBHEFBETLEREBE
wBRRAAE (T E])3,950,0000 E
2% 17 I @ % E #2,370,0000% (B) A&
EEBEZ2BERMITEHEES
) BIR & KRE R122,4228 T ©
HEEBEERAFERNTHK ©

%?IE 1% AA?\%%E&E}QE

=l
S g
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

10. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 10. HEKME AR (&)

(Continued) B
For the year ended 31 December 2019 éﬁ:zé:g—jbﬁ‘i':ﬁ =y
(Continued) B FE (&)

REERHZEEFENT

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK Mansion
Xincheng Point Yuanfeng
Disposal Disposal Disposal
Mansion
EBEW Point
HEZEF HEEE nTEHEEHE et
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
FRET FHx FBRT TR
Goodwill RS = - 1,939 1,939
Prepayments, deposits and other FEf B ~ 84 K
receivables H & e KB - - 211 211
Bank and cash balances RITRRITEH 3 - 15 18
Accruals and other payables FEEH & A K Hfh 5K (16) - (28) (39)
Asset of disposal group classified D EAEFESFHEZ
as held for sale HEAREE - 31,115 = 31,115
Liabilities directly associated with & Z & HEAFEH 2
disposal group =R - (72) = (72)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (13) 31,043 2,142 33,172
Release of foreign currency B SN BE R
translation reserve - 2 - 2
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 6 (144) (81) (219)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEB AR ZE1#E 10 (146) (1,939) (2,075)
Total consideration — satisfied by #RE—IAE & ZfF
cash 3 30,755 122 30,880
Net cash inflow arising on HEEEZFRERAN:
disposal:
Cash consideration received BElBEeRE 3 30,755 - 30,758
Cash and cash equivalents BEHERSRAESEEY
disposed of (3) (4) (15) (22)
- 30,751 (15) 30,736
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

11. INCOME TAX 11. I8 H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Current tax — BEARE I8 —
Hong Kong profits tax: BEENGEM
Provision for the year FREE - 1,049
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBEERE - (27)
- 1,022
Current tax — BNEA®iTE —
PRC Enterprise Income Tax: B EED:
Provision for the year FAEE - 24
Deferred tax (Note 27) i A€ B 18 (M 5E27) 400 (882)
Income tax expense Frs i 400 164

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2018: &HEFEHBIEF N ERBEF Z /R =X
16.5%) based on the assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (ZF —/\F : 16.5%) 5t e °

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been HMBRZERR & 2HBRAXE K
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries N5 B & & I FTE B R 2 IR 17 8 R MK
in which the Group operates, based on existing ERITZAEBEEN - 2B LIEHE -
legislation, interpretation and practices in respect

thereof.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

1. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. A8 H (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/ FIBRUER), /FXBBRATE A
expense and loss before income tax is as follows: EBEEHEAT:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET

Loss before income tax b BT 15 75 A1 /&5 18 (47,886) (199,417)
Tax at Hong Kong Profit Tax rate of 1% & B FT15 5 £16.5% 1 &

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ— )\ : 16.5%) (7,901) (32,904)
Tax effect of income is not taxable H 78T W A 2 T 1§ 5 & (78) (66)
Tax effect of expenses are not TAHBRAI  ME &

deductible 4,158 27,555
Tax effect of tax losses not RAERBTEBEZ

recognised Wig e & 5,463 7,101
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ) B F K& R IAE

not previously recognised EE2MEE (717) (20)
Tax effect of temporary differences FERERME =R 2

not recognised BT E (411) (311)
Effect of different tax rates of MEARTRBERZ

subsidiaries T (114) (1,164)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHRERE - (27)
Income tax expense FrsfiAx 400 164
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
RE-F-NE+-A=+—ALEE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FRAEIE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/ RNEFFENRN )gg BB GEA)T
(crediting) the following: 5| & 18 1% % BE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold/services HEFE RERBEK AN
provided 66,237 105,088
Depreciation of property, plant and % - BE K XEITE
equipment 7,460 8,652
Depreciation of right-of-use assets f# FAEZEEINE 6,092 -
Amortisation of intangible assets & 2 & & - 1,470
Reversal of impairment loss on BEES Kk M EWFIE 2
trade and other receivables A (222) (93)
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries &M E Q7 & B 2,075 -
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEWME  BE k& & EE
and equipment 11 193
Written off of property, plant and W - BB N AR R
equipment 114 835
Written off of inventories (included il $5 1% & (5T A 84 & Ak A)
in cost of sales) 904 -
Impairment losses on various FEHEEEMNREEBE
assets
Trade receivables =871 &N 5,379 46,672
Prepayments and trade deposits AR HIE R s&% Ee 5,672 50,568
Other receivables H b & U 3R IR 10,738 -
Property, plant and equipment N ﬁ%&%&ﬁ - 4,122
Intangible assets mEEE - 2,940
21,789 104,302
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BEES M
remuneration — note 13) — B$FE13)
Salaries, bonus and allowances e~ EAL ROEBL 33,022 34,302
Share-based payments AR 0 B EHER K - 18,921
Retirement benefits scheme RIKSFHEI R
contributions 465 610
33,487 53,833
Share-based payments to M EE BT AR (D A AT
consultant R - 1,877
Operating lease rentals in respect WAEYEZKLHHES
of office premises - 8,780
Expenses related to short-term lease S HIFA E B X 683 -
Auditor‘s remuneration 1% £ B & B 780 880
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERhAEZEeSFHFMA L
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) The remuneration of each director for the year (a) B2 ZE—NF+_A=+—
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below: BIEFESEEHFMHTIWOT

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits

and benefits ~ Share-based scheme

Fee in kind payment contributions

#e - 2ER HRBA £k
g RoRE  EEOMAR R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tér Tz Tz T T

Executive Directors EliEEd
Mr. Lu Yingil YAk i - 110 - - 110
Mr. Zhu Zhou FMEE 2 - 593 - - 593
Ms. Jiao Fei ERxT 3 - 34 - - 34
Ms. Zhou Jin Zhou JinX 4 - 563 - - 563
Indlevendent Non-executive Directors U477 Z2E
Mr. Liu Yang UG x4 5 1 - - - 1
Mr. Liu Yingjie UEAEE 1 59 - - - 59
Mr. Chan Kam Wah RHELE 6 52 - - - 52
Mr. Cao Hongmin ERREE 7 113 - - - 113
Mr. Chan Chi Pan REREE 8 54 - - - 54
Mr. Li Kar Fai TEREE 9 54 - - - 54
339 1,300 - - 1,639
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

13. EERARGREHFMAL

Fee

HK$000

TAT

(#%&)

HE_Z-N\F+=ZA=+—
HEFESESHMEINNOT :

Salarigs, Retirement
allowancesand  Share-based benefits scheme
benefits in kind contributi

B

HK$000 HK$ 000
TER TER

Executive Directors #rEE
Ms. Che Xiao¥an BEELT 10 - m 2,084 - 3,061
Mr. Man Wai Lun TEEAE 1 - 345 2,284 13 2,642
Mr. Zhu Zhou FlMxs 2 - 340 - - 340
Mr. Li Shun Min ZEREE 12 - 223 2,284 - 2,507
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEBRE 13 - 159 - - 159
Ms. Jiao Fei ERRT 3 - 120 2,284 - 2,404
Mr. Guan Jincheng EREEE 14 - 4 2,084 - 2,358
Inclependent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFR{TEZ
Mr. Liu Yang AGns 5 3 - - - 3%
Mr. Liu Yingje YAk i 3 - - - 3
Mr. Chan Kam Wah RBELE 6 120 - - - 120
Mr. Bai Hongha BEEE 15 8 - - - 84
Mr. Li AnSheng ERERE 16 8 - - - 82
Mr. Chen YongQuan REELE 17 82 - - - 82
Mr. Lin Hong Tong WEBLE 18 78 - - - 78
516 2,038 11,420 13 13,987

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2018: Nil). Neither the chief executive nor any of
the directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

BE_T-NAFT-_A=t—HLF
B - A& BB RE S E A
T ESMARSEE KR INERH
ReSERBERBECT-NF:
B BE_Z-NF+-_A=1—
BLEFE BMEFRITHRABNME
o] 2 1R 22 =k [R) & A3 O BRAE £A) B
(T NF 8E)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-F-NE+- A=+ ALEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Transfer from independent non-executive directors to
executive directors on 28 June 2019

2. Appointed on 19 August 2018 and resigned on 28 June
2019

3. Resigned on 12 April 2019

4. Appointed on 12 April 2019

58 Appointed on 13 September 2018 and resigned on 22
January 2019

6. Resigned on 5 June 2019

7. Appointed on 22 January 2019

8. Appointed on 19 July 2019

9. Appointed on 19 July 2019

10.  Resigned on 24 August 2018

11.  Resigned on 19 September 2018
12. Resigned on 13 August 2018

13.  Resigned on 19 September 2018
14.  Resigned on 13 August 2018

15.  Resigned on 13 September 2018
16.  Resigned on 6 September 2018
17. Resigned on 6 September 2018

18.  Resigned on 24 August 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 13. EEREEREHFMAL
PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (%)

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEBESFHFMAL

No director has been included as the five highest
paid individuals in the Group during the year (2018:
three directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above). The emoluments
of each of the individuals, two individuals falling
within the band of HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
and the other individuals falling within the band
of Nil to HK$1,000,000 (2018: the remaining two
individuals falling within the band of HK$2,500,001
to HK$3,000,000), for the year, are set out below:

AEEBFAREESFTMHAL
FRrBEEER(ZE—N\F: =
HEE BEFMEEZER LSO -
FRBALT(@mE AT HH
A F2,500,0017% 7T 23,000,000
BLIMEMALTHEHM N TES
1,000,000 T(ZZE—N\F: &
R B A I F B 2,500,001
7 7T 23,000,000 7T)) 2 ¥t B
m

2019 2018
ZE2E-AFE —ZTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T

Salaries, allowances and e REREMEF
benefits in kind 7,458 5,164

Retirement benefits scheme RRAE 7 ET &I 3R

contributions 90 36
7,548 5,200

Same as disclosed above, for the two years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no other
emoluments had been paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group.

HREEABREZEN BE-T
—WFER-_F-N\F+ZH
=t—BUEMAEFE A&E
BMEMIARS H AL
H fth B & 1F 3 0 A AN 5% [ 2 A0
AREBEROER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AN

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

14.

15.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of an
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$44,411,000 (2018: approximately
HK$194,804,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,010,605,000 (2018: 977,581,000) in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.
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14.

15.

i’ B
EETEBENBE-_ZT-LF+=
A=T—BLEFEXNRERA(Z
Z—N\F:HE)-

BREE

BRELREE
ARRBEBEABRBEERERNEIEB
DEANBBEEAELAFEEERE
#144,411,0008 T(Z T —NF: 4
194,804,000 70) R A F 8 B # 17
@ IR 2 0 R 19 £01,010,605,000
f% (= & — )\ £ : 977,581,000/%) &t

Aty

BERBESR

BE_FT-NFR-_F-N\Ft+A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BERRE
Plantand  Furniture and Office
machinery fixtures  Motor vehicles Decoration equipment
BRERER <2 AE b3 N
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL THEL TR AL
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 R-E-\E-F-H 44,431 1,713 9,89 11,425 1,424 68,888
Additions RE 1,757 48 983 1,118 4725 8,631
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-AHELA 3,666 5 2 = 4 3672
Disposal e (289 - (641) 332 54 (1,316
Wrtten off s - (30) - (134 (1,187) (1,351)
Exchange differences ERZEZ (336) - (13) (46) (16) (411)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NETZA=+-8Ek
1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-B 49,229 1,731 10,226 12,031 489 78,113
Additions E 5,984 3 61 70 600 6,718
Disposal e - - (31) - S (31)
Written off k= - - - - (120) (120)
Exchange differences EREER (%) - " 20) (88) (1)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AET-A=T-H 55,117 1,734 10249 12,081 5288 84,469
Accumulated depreciation 2iFE
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\E-F-H 35,108 1,643 8,325 4,181 348 49,605
Charge for the year ERzi 4,261 19 911 2,700 761 8,652
Disposal HE (63) - (80) (86) (17) (246)
Write back on written-off EEHH - U] - (36) 73 (516)
Impairment loss (note) REBEME) 4122 = = = S 4122
Exchanges differences EiZE (32) - - - )] (33)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\Et-F=t-BRN-E
1 January 2019 -NE-A-H 43,3% 1,685 9,156 6,759 618 61,584
Charge for the year ERTH 2,511 19 642 2,601 1507 7,460
Disposal mE - - @) - S ®
Write back on written-off EEHH - - - - ®) ®)
Exchange differences ERZEE (16) - (1) 0 (32) (51)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AET-A=1-H 45,801 1674 9,789 9,448 2177 68,979
Net book value BEFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NAE+=A=1-H 9,226 60 460 2,633 31 15,490
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\E+-f=1-H 5,833 76 1,070 52712 4278 16,529
Note: The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of Kiit: BRAEEERIMBER  HAE
its plant and machinery in 2018 as a result of the deterioration RZZE-NFHHEKE R 20
of the markets of the Group’s products. These assets are KE&BETEN ZEEEDAR
used in the Group’s trading segment. The reviews led to TEBZESGEBHH - EHAETHE
the recognition of an impairment loss of approximately O 18 &= R OR B B 18 494,122,000
HK$4,122,000, that has been recognised in profit or loss. BIT o A E 2B & B IR E
The recoverable amount of the related assets has been MAMBRBESRER(E=RATE
determined on the basis of their value in use using discounted ARIGEEFRAEEET - FHR2
cash flow methods (level 3 fair value measurements). The BhIR K B16% °

discount rate used was 16%.
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. HERERAEEE

Disclosures of lease-related items: HEHBEEBRBEZEE:
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FET
At 31 December: RT=RA=+—A8:
Right-of-use assets EHEEE
Land and buildings T RETF
— Offices /N 10,510
— Warehouse — B 138
— Employee accomodation —EEBES 2,105
12,753
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash AEEHEBEERNRMRRERN
flows, of the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows: EZHBBEASTET:
— Within one year - —FR 5,156
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive @— £ _-_FZ2FAF(BIEEEMF) 4,330
— Over five years — AFEMN E 7,962
17,448
Year ended 31 December: BE+T-A=+t—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets F BEEETEE R
Land and buildings T RETF
— Offices —WAE 5,348
— Warehouse — B 183
— Employee accomodation — EBEES 561
6,092
Lease interests HER B 801
Expenses related to short-term leases HEAEEEENRAX 683
Additions to right-of-use assets RNEFEREEE 1,402
The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease AEBHESTLIHEREF HE
agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to W —REE AB2E20F - HE
20 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual BRDDBEENEERE  B8%
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and BARGHREGH HEHZILE
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any MmimER R BHEEENEH
covenants and the leased assets may not be used as TER R o

security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. GOODWILL

fre I RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
RE-F-NE+-A=+—ALEE

18. &

Cost: R :
At 1 January 2018 NoE— N\ —H —A 54,604
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 5}5 B EHER 938
Reclassified as disposal group classified 9 48 & # T’Eu”j’iz HEHRZ

as held for sale EN R (52,665)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—N\F+=—A=+—H 2,877
Disposal of subsidiary (note 10) & 8 A A (Bt EE10) (1,939)
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—-NF+-_A=+—H 938
Accumulated impairment losses: Bt REEE:
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 21,910
Reclassified as disposal group classified 2 fEAFIEHEZ HEHERZ

as held for sale B (21,910)
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 R -_Z—N\F+_A=+—H "

and 31 December 2019 —T-NF—-HA—8Bk

—NWF+=ZA=+—H -

Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-—hE+ZA=+—H 938
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+-A=+—H 2,877

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £# 155



NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating
units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated as follows:

18.

2 ()
REEeHATAKRBOEEETRE
BAOMEBABIERZEREH
IR & E N EEMNKREAED
Blan T :

oo —

FIT°

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Provision of insurance brokerage — #EH{R B 48 42 & 7 78 AR 7%
and consultancy service ((BeEHETA)
(“CGU A") - 1,039
Manufacturing and trading HEREEELATEREE
of prefabricated precast A (ReLEHERTB])
construction components
(“CGU B’) 938 938
938 2,877
CGU A ReELHETA

The recoverable amounts of CGU A is determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash
flow method. The key assumptions for the discounted
cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and
revenue during the period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

CGU A (Continued)

2018

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors for the next five years with the residual
period using the growth rate of 5.0%. This rate does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s provision of insurance brokerage and
consultancy service activities is 16%.

2019

During the year of 2019, CGU A was disposed. At 28
November 2019, the Group has disposed 60% of the
issued shares capital of Yuanfeng Insurance Brokers
Limited to an independent third party (note 10).

CGU B

The recoverable amounts of CGU B is determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash
flow method. The key assumptions for the discounted
cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and
revenue during the period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors for the next five years with the residual period
using the growth rate in the range of 15% to 30% (2018:
10%-25%). This rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from
the Group’s manufacturing and trading of prefabricated
precast costruction components is 18% (2018:18%).

fRE G MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=1+—HILEE

18. B & (&)

BEEHETAR)
—T-N\F

AEEBEBEARAFEETSEBDY
EHMPKBEERENRESRETEN -
F e A AIEREA5.0% E— Lt
BITHBBHEETESHFEHRAER

AEERBERRBRELMBARES
FHHFERIR SR EMIREE16% ©

—E-NF

RN—_E—NFERN BeELET
ACHEE - RZEE—hhE+—A
ZHNH AEEBEETERR
KL ERARBO%EEITHRAHE
F—2BLE=F (H5E10) -

BEEHERB
ReERETBNAKEEEIRE
HERBRREeREEAEZER
BE®RTE MRREREZNEER
BRAERRER - FREUMHR
BEENERBAETHEE - A&H
ERB AR RGHERER K - ZF =
RBERMMEHEESHEHEENT
ERFERBRELETNAR -
BERERBEEHETEKES
FratERENRAFOLELER
R-BEEMNBRBAZERBEDN
MOER MG ERRNAEE -

AEEEBARAFEETSBEBRD
RAMBBERENRESRETEA
TR FERIBREERN T15%230% (=
T—N\F 10%ZE25%) ° & — Ll I
HBBHEEMENFEYRAEREE -

AEERERBEEREAAREZE
MEMBEARERERMRXRR18%
(ZE—N\F:18%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRe MM

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9. BEFEE

Internally
generated
technology
A BB EE A i
HK$’000
FAT
Cost: DN
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, WR-_Z—N\F—F—H —ZT—N\#F
1 January 2019 and +=-A=+—H —ZE—h#F
31 December 2019 —A—BNE-ZT—RF
+=ZA=+—H 5,880
Accumulated amortisation and REEE R REREIE:
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2018 N_ZE—NF—H—H 1,470
Charge for the year FARAX 1,470
Impairment loss BEEE 2,940
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—-N\F+ZA=+—HEZZ
31 December 2019 —hF+ZA=+—H 5,880
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—hhE+=-ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—N\F+=ZA=+—H -

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable
amount of its intangible assets in 2018 as a result
of the deterioration of the markets of the Group’s
products. These assets are used in the Group’s trading
business segment. The review led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of HK$2,940,000 for internally
generated technology for the trading of LED Cultivation
Cabinet business that have been recognised in profit
or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets
of HK$2,940,000 has been determined on the basis of
their value in using discounted cash flow method (level
3 fair value measurements). The discount rate used was
16%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

20. INVENTORIES

20. 7 &

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZT—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHET

Raw materials and consumables R B E FE 1,243 5,047
Finished goods 2K G 1,116 1,001
2,359 6,048

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2. ES R HMEWRE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FE T
Trade receivables ESEMFIE 87,680 78,776
Less: allowance for impairment of & : & 5 Ji& I 7 I8 8 (B B 1
trade receivables (51,777) (47,022)
Trade receivables, net B REWRTE - F58 35,903 31,754
Retention receivables 1R B8 e W 3k 18 2,911 3,398
Less: allowance for impairment of & : {7 & Ji& Ux 3 I8 &l (B B 5
retention receivables (28) (54)
Retention receivables, net REBEWTE  F5 2,883 3,344
Prepayments and trade deposits BRNRBEBERSES 57,861 60,063
Less: allowance for impairment BoENRBEEXSEE
of prepayments and trade BB B (P EE)
deposits (note) (56,156) (50,568)
1,705 9,495
Other deposits and receivables HEfiz e K& EUWGRIE 46,793 21,134
Less: allowance for impairment of & = £ 4th J& Uk 5k T8 il (B B &
other receivables (10,578) -
36,215 21,134
76,706 65,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR M e
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NE+- A=+ ALEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Note:

The amount mainly represents the impairment loss on
prepayment to suppliers in trading of Ecological LED
Cultivation Cabinet System business segment amounted
to approximately HK$40,719,000. During the year ended
31 December 2018, due to the unfavourable performance
of this business segment, the management was unable to
well utilize the prepayment for production of Ecological LED
Cultivation Cabinet System. The management is in progress
on negotiating with the supplier in order to agree the refund
arrangement, yet up to the end of reporting period, no
formal agreement have been signed between the Group
and the supplier. As advised by the Group's legal adviser,
the Group may not be able to collect the refund by supplier,
hence, impairment losses of approximately HK$40,719,000
have been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days
to its trade customers. The following is ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

21.

B 5 & HMEWREE)

VEE

ZEeHETERRRIEDEEBERBR
FEBHBRESHMHEREFEMLD
BB &5 18 4940,719,0008 T - B E—
E-NE+-_A=+—BLFE" &
RZEBIBHRBTE EEEX
R ITH B A ERIRLED A RETE1E
BEFHEMNRE - EEEIFHE
FERETTRER - B E R RNEH - 2
BEEREHR AEERAEEFZHE
MARFTMIER Bk o A EEERE
ERFEZ ASEEEEERME
BREER Al HE=ZFT—N\F
+TZA=1+t—HLEE FEEECH®
R 18 85 18 4940,719,000/8 7T °

AEBERTEFPNEEREYR K /45
B -REZXZAHNEFE WA
MR DTN

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT TET

0 ~ 30 days 0-30H 6,305 8,054
31 ~ 60 days 31-60H 4,909 4,650
61 ~ 90 days 61-90H 6,499 2,384
91 ~ 365 days 91-365H 12,909 10,855
Over 365 days 8 iB365H 5,281 5,811
35,903 31,754
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables:

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

21. EZ R H B W RIR ()

B 5 U R IA B 1B R R SR

2019 2018
—E-hF —T—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FET
At the beginning of the year F 4 47,022 428
Increase in loss allowance A 8 18 B 1 0
for the year 5,379 46,672
Reversal of loss allowance FABBERERD
for the year (220) (93)
Receivables written off during the B R #ifl $ = 7~ 7] U @]
period as uncollectable JiE W 5K I8 (326) -
Exchange difference EHEE (78) 15
At the end of the year FR 51,777 47,022
The Group applies the simplified approach under AEBEREAEBWBHREELERFES

HKFRS 9 to provide for expected credit losses using
the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,

trade receivables have been grouped

based on shared

credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking

information.

Over 30 days

Current

1%

past due

A% 28308

BTSN EARAEE S RER
REEREANBERRBHRIER
HEEER  RIAEBRBEEER -
EORWREBEERBAZEERR
FELBHBERIPHE -AHEES
BREaEEER -

Over 60 days
past due
B 2i860R

Over 90 days Over 365 days
past due past due
AHEEIA AHEBI65A

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZB=1-A
Weighted average expected loss rate BT EHERZ
Receivable amount (HK$'000) RESE(TET

Loss allowance (HK$000) FRAE(TAT)

At 31 December 2019 RZB-nEr=B=1-A
Weighted average expected loss rate ~ MIETHEEHER
Receivable amount (HK$'000) TRESE(TET)

Loss allowance (HK$000) BEAR(TETL)

3%
11,198
336

3%
12,539
313

3%
2,969
89

3%
2,280
67

3% 3% 91% 59%

5,107 12,179 55,632 87,680
1 399 50,782 51,717
4% 3% 89% 60%

1,765 10,262 51,960 78,776

I 3 46,194 47,022
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 22. RITRBE 48R
As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances R-ZZE—N&FE+=-A=+—8B" ' &
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to SEUNARBHENRITERESE

approximately HK$684,000 (2018: HK$3,074,000). £t 49 /5684,0008 T (Z T — N\ F:
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to 3,074,000 7T) - A R H N A
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations. 38 <F AR A1 B R o

At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash RBEBHER ROKRBEEHRES
balances comprise cash held by the Group and short- AEERFRAENRE UL RIBEEA
term bank deposits with an original maturity period of “EAKAAZREBARITER - R
three months or less. Bank balance carried interest at TR IR T 5 F M 2E0.001% £ 0.35%
market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% per annum (=Z Z — \%F:0.001% £0.35%) &t

(2018: 0.001% to 0.35%). Bo
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EZ R HWEARIE
2019 2018
—g-nF T NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET T T
Trade payables g S ER A 5,560 6,245
Accruals st E 3,940 4,773
Other payables H b fE 1~ 5K IE 4,140 6,046
13,640 17,064
Note: M a
Payment terms granted by suppliers are 30 days from the invoice date HEBETONZBRABBEERENER
of the relevant purchases. HEfRE30R ©

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the BORNFRBEBEREEBHNERR

invoice date is as follows: R/ ClNE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E=—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T IT
0 ~ 30 days 0-30H 1,378 3,738
31 ~ 60 days 31-60H 324 79
61 ~ 90 days 61-90H 587 -
Over 90 days 23890 A 3,271 2,428
5,560 6,245
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24. BORROWINGS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

24. £ &

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZET-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FAT

Other loan HEmER (@) 40,000 40,000
Bonds payables & % JE T 5B (b) 5,800 -
45,800 40,000

(@) The other loan was an interest
HK$40,000,000 which was unsecured,

-bearing portion of

interest bearing at 7.5%

per annum and repayable on 25 November 2020.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, the Company issued a number

of HK$-denominated bonds with an

aggregate principal of

HK$5,800,000 (2018:Nil). The bonds are unsecured, bearing
interest rates at 9% (2018: Nil) per annum and repayable during
the period from July 2020 to August 2020.

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

(a) H#h E X HE40,000,0005% 7T B 5t B 2P
D RERE . FREATSRIW AR
TE-_TFE+—A-+HBAEE-

by RZBE-AF+-A=+—8 ARQ7
BT —RANBLERSF BAESH
75,800,000/ 7T (T — )\4F : ) » 3%
EEHAERF R ERI%FE(ZFT
—“NEBREAR-_ZE-_ZTFLAR
EE-_TFNAILHEEE -

25. HEAE

Present value

Lease of lease
payments payments
HENSR HENRZEE
As at 31 As at 31

December 2019 December 2019
R=F—N%F R=ZZE—h&
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+-—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 5,156 4,607
In the second to fifth years, BE_FEFRF(BIE
inclusive HEMT) 4,330 2,885
After five years hF 1% 7,962 5,928
17,448
Less: Future finance charges B BERERX (4,028) N/A £
Present value of lease liabilities HEBECHE 13,420 13,420
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& - #1218 A 71 %) £
within 12 months (shown under HEE 2 FERRE
current liabilities) BEEBETZ%) (4,607)
Amount due for settlement after 12 W 12{E AR B Hi&E 2
months WIE 8,813
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
At 31 December 2019, the average effective borrowing
rate was 5.125% (2018: Nil). Interest rates are fixed at
the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

26. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The advance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year
are as follows:

HEESE(E)
R-F-AF+-_A=+—80" ¥
BEREENERS125% (ZE—/\F:
B) MNEXREVBEHETE  AA
SEAZ R FEMRER -

B —REERE
ZBRAEERT  REWEAKREX
BiE -

EEBEBERE
FRELH AR BN E

25.

26.

27.

;T -

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

HN R A B T B

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H 915
Credit to profit or loss (Note 11) qu)\T@ = (e 3E11) (882)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+_A=+—H 33
Changed to profit or loss (Note 11) EATE ﬁn?ﬂ > (Pt 5£11) 400
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NAF+ZA=+—H 433
At the end of 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group HEZZ-—NFERZFT—N\F+ZA

has unused tax losses of HK$32,512,000 (2018:
HK$32,370,000) available for offset against future
profits.
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32,370,000/ 7o) 7] # K $8 K &K &
F o



28. SHARE CAPITAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

28. k&

Number of Ordinary
shares shares
% 17 21 B ZBR
HK$’000
FHE T
Authorised: EERA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 — &/ E180.01& T2
each: AR
As at 1 January 2018, 31 RZE—-N\F—H—H"
December 2018, 1 January —Z—/\F+_-A
2019 and 31 December =+—8 -ZZ—A%F
2019 —B—BR-_E—NF
+-—A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRABE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 — &R [E180.01;& 7.2
each: ZE K

Number of
shares

IR 13 B E

Ordinary
shares
ZRER

HK$’000
THTT

As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\FE—H—H 929,707,000 9,297
Issue of shares on placement VAl & 75 R ETRH (a) 80,898,000 809
As at 31 December 2018 and R-Z—N\F+_A
31 December 2019 =t+—BR-ZE—-AF
+-—A=+—H 1,010,605,000 10,106

Notes: M EE
Completion of the share placement took place on 30 May
2018 pursuant to which 80,898,000 placement shares were
issued under the placement agreement at the placement price
of HK$0.5 per placing share at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$40,449,000, of which approximately
HK$809,000 was credited to share capital and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$38,831,000 (net of issuing
expenses of approximately HK$809,000) was credited to
share premium. Details of the placement were set out in the
Company‘s announcements dated 30 May 2018.

BHOEEER=ZTE—N\EFRA=THE
X v {1tk - 80,898,000 FL E 1D E 1R
BEREMZREEESRESERMKH0.5
P& TT T AT - X {E %) R40,449,000
77T+ H A #49809,0005% T 5T A B AN K&
# % #938,831,000/8 7t (B ETHA X
#9809,0008 L) st A B B B B R o B
EEENFRBRIENREAQRABH AT
—N\ERA=ZTHHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

29. AN T B R O R R A A 2
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 3]

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (a) %
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1 % - = K& & 1,758 4,251
Right-of-use assets PREEE 2,852 -
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRMEE 10,580 41,514
15,190 45,765
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& B b e W IE 3,738 3,641
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y it B A &) Z I8 52,049 48,640
Bank and cash balances SRITRBITHE S 5,416 8,364
61,203 60,645
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H b & RIE 2,379 1,751
Amounts due to directors N EEFHA 10,450 -
Borrowing BE 5,800 -
Lease liabilities MEAE 2,925 -
21,554 1,751
Net current assets RBEEFE 39,649 58,894
Total assets less current MEERRBER
liabilities 54,839 104,659
NET ASSETS EEFE 54,839 104,659
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves EXARFHE
Share capital [i& < 10,106 10,106
Reserve (Ege] 44,733 94,553
Total equity 48R 3 54,839 104,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

29. A 7] B 5 IR  R R A A
28 (H)

(b) REL2E

Share-based

Share payment Special Accumulated
Premium reserve reserve losses Total
NG AER

BRHEE ZAREE 5 R 2itER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TAT BT TAT THET

(Note i) (Note ii)

Cik:3) k]
Balance as at R-E-N\§¥-FA—-H

1 January 2018 A1 230,122 10,707 30,577 (39,857) 231,549
Loss for the year FREE - - - (196,625) (196,625)
Issue of shares on NEERAETRAG

placement 38,831 - - - 38,831
Share-based payments ~ bAR% 13 & E B 2 7 3% - 20,798 - - 20,798
Cancellation of share  F s B R 1

options - (26,741) - 26,741 -
Balance as at 31 RZE-NF+ZA=+—

December 2018 =iopey3 268,953 4,764 30,577 (209,741) 94,553
Balance as at RZE-h#&

1 January 2019 -B-RAz&H 268,953 4,764 30,577 (209,741) 94,553
Loss for the year FNER - - - (49,820) (49,820
Balance as at 31 RZZE-NE+ZA

December 2019 —t+-HNE® 268,953 4,764 30,577 (259,561) 44,733

Note i: The share-based payment reserve represents the BEED s DARRID B B B A0 R 45 1L IR

Note ii:

fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to directors,
employees and a consultant of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Special reserve represents the difference between
the fair value of the shares of Ultimate Expert
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation on 8 May
2014 over the nominal value of the Company’s share
issued in exchange therefore.

MHRRM AR AR EEL
AR AERONRRANEE
BERMER RTITAKEES
EERERORTEBRENE
B BENRTE-

GEIRECEI T ECE Y St S L
EUN-F3-¥-V1'3 3 BN 30
DT AE R AR A E U 5 B

TRMZEEBEZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR M e
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NEF+-A=1+—HILEE

/A~

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors, business consultants,
agents, legal and financial advisers of the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 2 August 2014 and refreshed on 2 June
2017 and 8 June 2018, respectively, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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30.

BRESE

ARBIETHERETE (X8
ERAEM2EERHIBIERNU
REHAEEXBALES - 8 F
R2EERBEARTNARFMWE
RAMER(ERBEFR)  THA
E - BRABR EF EBERM-
RE - ZXERTBHER - Zat &8RN
—E-WOENRZBERRDHR
—E-EFEFXRAZBRZZE-NF
NANBEF  BRIERBEHEHE
7 BRIBZAERTFRDAER -

BEZE  BEAREZHEAT
FHERESERZAIASEREENT
FREARATMNRMZEETR
M210% - REM+ZFEAHAREA -
BEZTEBUAERSBEER
MERE FETHRNDESEE -
B RERABNNKARBSEITIRDD
0.1% AR - T 58 HMNE LB 8 it R
HEREREAERRERAT LERE
HEAE o

BYARAES TRARATE
BRREIWEEMBEALZBRE
BRBIFPITESERAME - It
Sh o RMER+ZEAHEAR - [
AARBEEBRRIBILIFNTE
FORHEHAMBEARTNEME
P 4% - iR 3B AN B AE AT B AR £ Y
01% HAREGRBARFRE L B H
Z B 7 {8 1%) i 385,000,000/ 7T
ARBRAREEEEBRRILE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 7 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than five years from the date of
the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iiij the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

fRE G MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=1+—HILEE

30. BB RS EI (&)

REBRENENATERI BN Z
FEEtEABHEARAINERERE
MERIBTTMEMR - REBRED
TERAATBHEEHRTE TR E—H
EHRFAGR BEROBRENKE
ZZHARESAEF URFEERE)
Bk

BRETEEAIHESET B
SERUTHRSENEARAKROR
REBERAEER 2B TE : (i)
EERENRHZAAEARXZEAR
7] i 22 ) S 15 B <2 BT U THAE ¢ R (i)
EHNEAARRBRMDEE -

BREIRTHAARMKERR
REL®ERE-
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NFT-A=+-BLEE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. iR f#& 5 8 (/&)

The following tables disclose the movements in the UNTEREEBTAFERARAEBER
Company‘s number of share options during the years: EHENED:
2019 —E-NF
Lapsed/
Qutstanding at Granted Exercised cancelled during ~ Qutstanding at Exercise
1 January 2019 during the year  during the year the year 31 December 2019 Grant date Vesting Period Exercisable period price
RZ8-1%
R-%-1% t2A=1-B
-B-RAGE EMRY ERGR  EREN/EE it
Directors
£
M. Lo Znong Ping 20164 6,200,000 - - - 6,200000 14 June 2016 14 June 2016 - 15 June 2016 - HKS0.83
16 June 2016 14 June 2026
Priie Z§-7E ZE-5f ZE2-RERATIRE 03T
AATRA RATRAZ ZEIRERATRA
Z2-RE
RATER
Ms, Che Xic¥an 2018 10,106,050 - - - 10,106,050 19 June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HKS0.63
20 June 2018 20 June 2020
H Z3-NF Z3-0F Z§-NE 063%7
RATHA RATARE AAZt-RE
25\ ol dut 3
RA=18 |
16,306,050 - - - 16,306,050

170 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEIZRFRAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. B RESHEI(E)
2018 —E-N\F

Directors
iz
r.LiuZhong Ping 20164 6,200,000 - - - 6200000 14 June 2016 14June 2016 - 19 Jung 2016 - HkS0.83
15 Jung 2016 14 Jung 2026
Ypist Z2-RERATER E-RERATEAE CE-AERATRRE O83ER
E-RERRTER CECRERATEA
Mr.Guan Jin Cheng 20178 8,089,800 - - (8,089,800) - 15une 2017 15 June 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 - HKS063
16.June 2017 16 June 2027
ERRRE E-1E E-CERRTIRE E-tERATRAE 03T
nATEA ZE-ERATAR “EotERRTEA
Mr ManWailon 20178 8,089,800 - - (8,089,800) - 15ine 2017 15 June 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 - HK$0.63
16 Jung 2017 15 Jung 2027
b it 5tE 5-tEAATRRE O E-HERATAEE 083ET
~ATEA E-ERATAE CEotERATEA
Ms. W ChunPing 20178 8,089,800 - - (8,089,800) - 15une 2017 15.Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 - HKS063
16.June 2017 16 June 2027
RTRL 5tE T-tERRTRRE ZE-ERRTRAE 063
nATEA ZE-ERATAR “EotERRTEA
Ms. Che XeoYan 2018 - 10,106,080 - - 10,106,050 19 June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HK$0.63
20 June 2018 20 June 2020
BEENT FN Z3-)EAATARE  ZE-N\ERAZT-RE 06351
nyiawik E-N\ERECTR CEEESACTE
M. i Shunmin 2018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HKS063
20 June 2018 20 June 2020
ZRERRE 5\ E-\EARTARE ZE-NERACT-HE 063
~ATAR E-MERAZTR ZEIEERACTA
M. Guan Jincheng 2018 - 10,106,080 - (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HK$0.63
20 June 2018 20 June 2020
BEnE 25N ZE-\ERRTARE ZE-NERAZT-BE 06T
nyiawik E-N\ERECTR CECEESACTE
Wi MenWailin 2018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HKS063
20 June 2018 20 June 2020
XEBEE “E-\ERATAA E-\EARTABEZ  ZE-NERACT-HE 063
$-)\EnAztA iy o
Ms. Jiao Fei 218 - 10,106,080 - (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HK$0.63
20 June 2018 20 June 2020
ERt ENERRTAR ZE-NERATAREZ ZE-MERAZT-RE 06T
$-N\ErA=TA e g
SubHotal 30,469,400 50,530,260 - (64,693,600) 16,306,090
g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRe MM

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2018

ranted
during the year

Quring f

30. BB RS EI (&)
—B-N\F

Frfk

Consultant 20178 8,000,000 - (8,000,000) - 15 2017 1 Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 - HKS0 63
16 Jung 2017 16 Jung 2027

gf “E-ERATIA 5-tEARTERE O E-ERATAEE 083ET
EYERRTAR CECtERATER

Consultant 218 - 10,106,050 (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HK$0.63
21 June 2018 20 June 2020

&M “E-N\ErATAR ZE-0ERBTARE  ZE-NERACT-RE 063ET
ENERRZT-A ZRIEERACHA

Other employes 018 5,089,800 - (5,089,800 - 15June 2017 15 June 2017 - 16.June 2017 - HK$063
16.June 2017 15 June 2027

ihEE “E-tERATIA I-tERRTIRE ZE-ERRTRAE 063
TE-YERRTAR CECtERATER

Other employeg 20178 3,709,800 - (3,70,800) - 15 2017 15 Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 - HKS0.63
16 Jung 2017 1 Jung 2027

Efigs ZE-ERRTER ZEI-tERATRRE CR-AERATREE03ET
EYERRTAR CECtERATER

Other employeg 218 - 10,106,050 (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HkS0.83
20 June 2018 20 June 2020

iEE “E-N\ErATAR TE-NERATABE CE-NERACT-HEO63ER
ENERRZTR ZRIRERACHA

Other employes 2018 - 10,106,050 (10,106,050) - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 Jung 2018 - HK$063
20 June 2018 20 June 2020

EbEE E-NERATAR CE-NERATARE E-NERACT-BE 083ER
ZE-NERAZTR ZEIEERACA

Other employeg 218 - 10,106,050 (10,106,050] - 19June 2018 19 Jung 2018 - 21 Jung 2018 - HK$0.63
20 June 2018 20 June 2020

£bEg E-MERATAR ZE-NERATARE E-MERACT-RE 0637
E-N\ERACTR CECEESACTE

Other employeg 218 - 10,106,050 (10,106,050 - 19June 2018 19 June 2018 - 21 June 2018 - HK$0.63
20 June 2018 20 June 2020

iEE “E-N\ErATAR TE-NERATABE CENERACT-HEO83ER
ENERRZTR ZRCRERACHA

Sibotel 16799600 50050 (67329850 -

bt

Total 47,269,000 101,060,500 (182,023,460) 16,306,050

hy

The options outstanding at the end of the year have
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.75

years (2018: 3.75 years).
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B1.BERTXRS

(@) Other than as disclosed transaction and balance @ FW BRixsIHBEFREM TS
elsewhere in note 13 to the consolidated financial FIRBoRGRERIN A&
statements, during the year, the Group had no EMEEMEELIRS -
other related party transactions.

(o) Compensation of key management personnel by TEEEAENBE

The emoluments of the Company‘s Directors, who are AR EEFAEETEEEEA

also identified as members of key management of the B)NMEEH N8 -

Group, are set out in note 13.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 2. KRB X EMBLAERE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company‘s principal subsidiaries at WTARBERARARAEENB

the end of the reporting period are as follow: NG

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power
FEs/ REERAL

Place of Issued and Paid-up
incorporation Legal status capital Direct Indirect
EMALEE EE5D BRARARRA E# A&
Ultimate Expert Holdings Limited BV Limited liability company  USD2,000/ USD2,000 100% -
BT BERERAT XERLEE  ARAF 2,000% 7T /2,000% 7T
Leisure Peace Limited BvI Limited liability company ~ USD1/USD1 100% -
Leisure Peace Limited EERLEE ARAA #1/1%71
Drillcut Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company ~ HK$5,000,000/ - 100%
HK$5,000,000
BRIRERRA b ERAT 5,000,000% 7,/
5,000,000/ 7t

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3 173

Principal activities and

place of operation
TEERROERY

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Provision of concrete demolition

RIGERLFEDRE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR M e
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NE+- A=+ ALEE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

incorporation Legal status

EV
A L B
Forever Rise Investment Limited Hong Kong
RERABRAT Bk
AITEFREENBER PRC
RRAA
RITFETREENBRR HE
BRAA
FESETEERRREERAT PRC
BRLETEERZHRAERLR TH
EMNERRREMBEERAD  PRC
EMEREREMHARAR  E

EREA

Limited liability company
ARARA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company

2. KRB ETEMBATRE

(#&)

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power

FiERs/ RERBAM

Issued and Paid-up
capital
BRTRARRA

Indirect
M

Direct
=8

HKS1/HKS1 -
BL/1ET

100%

RMB20,000,000/ - 51%
RMB20,000,000
ARH#20,000,0007T/

AR 20,000,000

RMB500,000/ -
RMB500,000

AR 500,007,/
AR 5000007

51%

RMBA43,000,000/ -
RMB12,138,000

61%

AR #43000,0007,/
AR 143,000,000
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Principal activities and
place of operation
TEXBREEHS

Trading of LED Products
EELEDER

Research and sales of LED
Cultivation Cabinet
HERBEEDERBRE

Trading of clean coal

BERRR

Manufacturing and trading
of prefabricated precast
costruction components

HEREERRARYRE
at



33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year:

33.

fRE I SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-AEF+-A=+—HLEFE

REBRERERME
METHELEBEZEH

THBRTIAEENRFARE LD
ELXREBEZEE:

Amount due to Lease
a director liabilities Borrowings Total
Ef-—%
EENE HEESE EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET AL BT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE—F—-A8 - - 40,000 40,000
Changes in cash flows Rergd _ _ _ _
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NF+ZA=+-BK
1 January 2019 ZT-N§-A—H - - 40,000 40,000
Changes in cash flows Bengs 10,450 (5,421) 5,800 10,829
Non-cash changes FEeE
—initial adoption of HKFRS 16 — ¥R LAV E 8 B 1 4 &5 & A
2165 - 17,570 - 17,570
- addition -RNE - 1,402 - 1,402
- exchange differences -EREER - (131) - (131)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nF+=-A=+—8 10,450 13,420 45,800 69,670
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 4. REHEEE

PERIOD

The coronavirus disease 2019 outbreak since early
2020 has brought additional uncertainties in the
global macroeconomic situation. The Group expects
the event may potentially affect the Group’s business
performance in the first half year of 2020. The degree of
impact could not be reasonably estimated at this stage.
The Group will closely monitor the development of the
epidemic and assess its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 March 2020.
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FINANCIAL
SUMMARY

B E

>

AEERBERIEMBRFECXERE
ERAEME(MBEEAFR Z2EEZLER
BMBHRF)MT

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, is as follows.

2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-hE ZE)\& ZE—+HF ZE-RE ZE-0f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET THET FET FET
Revenue WA 93,341 133,631 183,283 128,964 90,260
Cost of sales HEMAR (66,237)  (105,088)  (154,632)  (101,504) (59,627)
Gross profit EF 27,104 28,543 28,651 27,460 30,633
Other income and net gains  E It A IR A B 58 (1,349) (35,049) 101,922 542 393
Administrative and other THREMEERY
operating expenses (69,615) (189,911) (111,719 (93,006) (17,055)
Operating (loss)/profit 2E(BB)/ (43,860)  (196,417) 18,854 (65,004) 13,971
Finance costs BE AR (4,026) (3,000) (2,000) (1,998) (308)
(Loss)/profit before income K Fr R AT (B518),/ i 7l
tax (47,886)  (199,417) 16,848 (67,002) 13,663
Income tax expense FTERHAY (400) (164) (1,016) (2,241) (3,049)
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EBR) & H (48,286)  (199,581) 15,832 (69,243) 10,614
Attributable to: 1
Owners of the Company N/NCIE XD (44,411)  (194,804) 18,138 (68,092) 10,614
Non-controlling interests FERES (3,875) 4,777) (2,306) (1,151) -
(48,286)  (199,581) 15,832 (69,243) 10,614
Asset and liabilities EERAE
Total assets BEE 138,738 161,478 295,527 204,087 146,783
Total liabilities BafE (83,899) (57,342) (54,181) (93,884) (65,190)
Net assets BEFE 54,839 104,136 241,346 110,203 81,593
Attributable to: e -
Owners of the Company ARAEEA 59,162 104,197 242,266 111,188 81,593
Non-controlling interests FERES (4,323) 61) (920) (985) -
54,839 104,136 241,346 110,203 81,593

AHBERHESL TNERAES M BERRN—

#BiD o

The financial summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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